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NOTICE OF THE TWENTY EIGHT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Eight Annual General Meeting of Security Investment Bank Limited (the Company) will be held
at the Registered Office of the Company located at Suite Number 4, 3rd Floor, Al-Baber Centre, Main Markaz, F-8, Islamabad, on 29 April
2019 at 9:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1) To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 23 April 2018.
2) To receive and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 together with the

directors' and auditor's reports thereon.

3) To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2019.The retiring auditors M/s.BDO Ebrahim
& Co. Chartered Accountants retires and being eligible offers themselves for reappointment to act as the external auditors of the
Bank and fix their remuneration for the years ending 31, December 2019.

4) To approve property purchased in the name of the bank.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

5) To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

BOOK CLOSURE

The share transfer book of the company will remain closed from 22 April 2019 to 29 April 2019 (both days inclusive). Transfer applications

received in order at the office of the Share Registrar of the Company (i.e. C & K Management Associates (Private) Limited, room number

404, Trade Tower, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi) by the close of business on 21 April 2019 will be treated in time for determining the
entitlement of members to attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By order of the board
Karachi: Sohaib Hasan
26 March 2019 Company Secretary
NOTES:
1) A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies

in order to be effective must be received at the office of the share registrar of the company duly stamped and signed not less than
48 hours before the meeting. A member may not appoint more than one proxy.

2) Members are requested to promptly communicate to the Share Registrar of the Company any change in their addresses.

3) CDC account holders and sub-account holders are required to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

a) For attending the meeting.

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall bring his or her original CNIC or original passport
alongwith Participant ID Number and the Account Number at the time of attending meeting.

ii)  In case of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee
shall be produced at the time of meeting.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



4)

5)

6)

b) For appointing proxies

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii)  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC number shall be mentioned
on the form.

iii)  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
iv) The proxy shall produce his or her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted to the company along with proxy form.

Pursuant to Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and Finance Act, 2017 withholding tax on dividend income will be
deducted for 'Filer' and 'Non-Filer' shareholders at 15% and 20% respectively. According to the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR),
withholding tax will be determined separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of principal shareholder as well as joint holder(s) based
on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. Members that hold shares with joint shareholders are requested to
provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share
Registrar, in writing. In case the required information is not provided to our Registrar it will be assumed that the shares are held
in equal shares by principal shareholder and joint holder(s).

SUBMISSION OF COMPUTERISED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD / NATIONAL TAX NUMBER

We would like to bring it to the notice of our valued shareholders that the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
vide Notification No. SRO 831(I)/2012 dated 05 July 2012 in supersession of earlier Notification No. SRO 779(1)/2011 dated
18 August 2011, has directed all the listed companies to issue dividend warrant(s) only crossed as "A/C Payee Only" in the name
of registered shareholder or in the name of authorised person where a registered shareholder authorises the Company to pay
dividend, on his behalf, to any other person. The dividend warrant(s) should also bear the Computerised National Identity Card
Number (CNIC) of the registered shareholder or the authorised person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate shareholders.

In view of the above, it is requested that the Members, who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested
to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company Share Registrar.

The Corporate Shareholders are requested to provide at the earliest their National Tax Number directly to the Company Share
Registrar.

DIVIDEND MANDATE OPTION

In compliance of the Circular No. 18 of 2012 dated 05 June 2012, we would like to inform our valued shareholders that Section
242 of the Companies Act, 2017 allows the shareholders of a company to order the company to pay them cash dividend, if declared,
through their respective banks.

In this regard, those shareholders who would like to avail the above facility are requested to provided following details directly
the Share Registrar of the Company.

Name of Shareholder

Folio Number / Participant ID and Account Number
CNIC Number

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Name

Branch Name

Branch Address

Cell Number of Shareholder, if any

Landline Number of Shareholder, if any

WZA| Security Investment Bank Ltd.



7)

8)

Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements and Notices

Pursuant to Notification vide SRO 787 (I)/2014 dated September 08, 2014:SECP has directed all companies to facilitate their
members receiving Annual Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting (Notice) through electronic mail system
(e-mail). The Company is pleased to offer this facility to our valued members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements
and Notices through email in future. In this regard, those members who wish to avail this facility are hereby requested to convey
their consent via email on a standard request form which is available at the Company website i.e. http://www.sibl.com.pk Please
ensure that your email account has sufficient rights and space available to receive such email which may be greater than 1MB
in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the member (s) to timely update the Share Registrar of any changes in his/her/its/their
registered email address at the address of Company's Share Registrar mentioned above.

Placement of Financial Statements

The Company has placed the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 along with Auditors and
Directors Reports thereon on its website: http://www.sibl.com.pk

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

I am pleased to present the 27th Annual Report of your Company on behalf of the Board of Directors, the Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 along with my review on the performance of your Company.

Economic Overview

During the year under review, Pakistan's economy remained under pressure. The rising trend in core inflation with devaluation in rupees
made it difficult to take economic development freely. On the other side rising trend in SBP discount rate gave rise to the cost of domestic
manufacturers, resulting price hike of all commodities produced locally.

GDP growth for FY 18 rose to 5.8% compared to 5.4% achieved in FY17.CPI inflation shown an upward trend and reached at 7.2% in
January 2019. During FY 18 imports rose to an all-time high USD 67 billion, ballooning the trade deficit to USD 37 billion. The external
account shows under considerable pressure, the rupee continued to slide, losing 26% of its value during the year and crossing Rs. 140, our
foreign exchange reserves rebounded slightly after inflows from Saudi Arabia and UAE.

In the context of overall economy, the equity market under performed during the year 2018. The PSX index showed 37,067 points at the
closing of the year.

Consequently keeping the view of economic scenario, the SBP has adopted a rapid tightening of monitory policy, increasing discount rate
during the year.

Financial Performance

Alhamdulillah, during the financial year 2018, your company posted operating profit before taxes of Rs.34 million as compared to Rs. 22
million for the corresponding year.

The leadership and effectiveness of the Board are primarily the Chairman's responsibility. We, in the Board recognize the importance of,
and are committed to, high standards of corporate governance, aligned with the needs of the Bank and the interests of all our stakeholders.
All directors are aware of their duties and responsibilities. They review and approve the Company's financial statements in addition to all
significant plans and decisions. The Audit Committee focuses on compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and relevant
statutory requirements, changes in accounting policies and practices, compliance with listing regulations, monitoring the internal and external
audit functions, review of financial statements. The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reviews human resource needs,
compensation policies and plans, and executive compensation.

Acknowledgement

I would like to acknowledge thank our CEO, his executive leadership team and all the employees of SIBL for their hard work, commitment.
I am also grateful to our bankers, shareholders, the SECP, Stock Exchanges and other regulators for their cooperation and support.

KARACHI: Haji Jan Muhammad
Dated: March 26, 2019 Chairman
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DIRECTORS” REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of Security Investment Bank Limited (the "Company") are pleased to present the 27th Annual Report along with the Audited
Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Financial Performance

Alhamdulillah, the year characterized by continued growth in terms of profitability and assets size. Overall size of balance sheet increased
by 21%. During the financial year 2018, your company posted Operating profit before tax of Rs 34 million compared to operating profit
of Rs 22 million during the corresponding period of 2017. There is 55% increase in operating results of the bank. Return on financing

increased by 31 to Rs. 67 million from Rs. 51 million.

The key financial results achieved during the year are as under:

Year Year Increase/
2018 2017 Decrease
(Rupees in million) %
Total Income 73 58 +26
Expenditure 39 36 +8
Finance cost 9 3 +200
Administrative 30 33 -9
Profit from operation 34 22 +55
Realized gain on re-measurement of PSX shares - 52 -
Profit before tax 34 74
Taxation (17) (13)
Net Profit after tax 17 61 +30
Earnings per share 0.335 1.18
Transfer to General Reserve 3.387 12.135

Your company's management is endeavouring to enhance capital adequacy requirement to take deposit-taking status under the NBFC's
Regulations. During the year under review, the sponsors/directors had injected funds of Rs. 180 million through sub ordinate loan to meet
the minimum capital requirement and submitted application to SECP for up-gradation of status as deposit taking entity. All the points raised
by SECP through its report have been complied, submitted an undertaking and repayment schedule duly signed by sponsors directors. We
also look forward for future in line with our core business strategies to explore new markets and customer segments for further business
expansion in untapped segments.

Market risk

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of market risks ( in addition to liquidity and credit risks). Market risk with respect to the bank's
activities include interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility when changes in interest rate affect the value of financial instruments. The Bank is exposed to
interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period. The
Bank manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. AsatDecember 31, 2018, short term financing to H.M. Esmail & Co. Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private)
Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties aggregated to Rs. 546.939 million out of which financing amounting to Rs. 292.887
million were rolled over. Moreover, during the period, an amount of Rs. 72.416 million was receivable from H.M. Esmail & Co.
Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private) Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties in respect of markup
accrued which was converted into finance facility.

Security Investment Bank Ltd. |INER



The Company has not performed subjective evaluation of its financing portfolio as required under Regulation 25 of Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and has not carried out impairment review as required by International
Accounting Standard 39 - Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement despite presence of impairment indicators in the
portfolio. The Company has not recorded any provision for impairment based on subjective evaluation of the borrowers.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") regularly reviews the strategic direction, business plans and performance in
the light of the Company's overall objectives. The Board is committed to maintain the high standards of good corporate governance.
The Company is complying with the provisions set out by the Regulator and the listing rules of the Stock Exchanges.

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board would like to confirm that:

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity;

Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements, and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and
any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored,

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.
The directors are not entitled any remuneration except meeting fee and any increase in meeting fees approved by the board of directors
in their meeting and ratify it in upcoming meeting of shareholders.

The executive director/Chief Executive Officer is entitled remuneration approved by the board of directors in their meeting and ratify
it in upcoming meeting of shareholders.

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board has approved a formal process for its annual performance evaluating
through an in-house mechanism based on Quantitative Technique with scored questionnaires. The exercise is on-going expected to
be completed in the up- coming financial year 2019

In compliance to the Code of Corporate Governance, in respect of Director's Training Program for majority of its Directors so as to
acquaint them with the regulations, applicable laws, their duties and responsibilities. The exercise is on-going expected to be completed
in the up- coming financial year 2019

Key operating and financial data of six years of the Company are as follows:

(Rupees in millions)

Share capital 514 514 514 514 514 514
Shareholder's equity 779 582 573 519 517 | 506
Deposits - 8 8 29 22 125
Borrowings 3 37 - - - 177
Short term financing 556 415 292 260 212 126
Investments 113 56 125 41 30 431
Operating profit 34 22 11 3.4 145 | 5.1
Net profit 17 61 9 0.9 122 | 3.4
Total assets 819 678 623 557 546 | 793
Dividend - - - - - -

Bonus - - - - - -

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



Value of Provident Fund Investment

As on 31 December 2018 based on the unaudited accounts, the value of investment of Provident Fund is Rs. 1.954 millions (2017 Rs 3.064
millions).

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at 31 December 2018 along with the disclosure required under the Code of Corporate Governance, 2017 is
annexed to the report.

Directors' Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2018, six Board of Directors; four Audit Committee and three Human Resources and Remuneration

Committee (HR & R) meetings were held. Attendance of each director is as follows:

Name Independent / Executive / Non-  Board of Audit HR & R
Non-Independent ~ Executive Director Directors = Committee Committee
Haji Jan Muhammad Non-Independent Non-Executive 4 2 N(.)t
Applicable
Karlm Muhammad Independent Non-Executive 5 4 3
Munir
Mohammad Shoaib . Not Not
Non-Independent Non-Executive 6 Applicable | Applicable
Muhammad . Note
Mahboob Non-Independent Non-Executive 6 Applicable 3
Shaikh Abdullah Independent Non-Executive 6 4 N9t
Applicable
Sheikh Asim Rafiq Independent : Not
(NIT Nominee) Non-Executive 3 2 Applicable
Zafar M. Shaikh Non-Independent Executive 6 N(.)t 3
Applicable

Leave of absence was granted in case the Directors were not able to attend the meeting.

Trade / dealing in shares of the Company

During the year, the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children did not

carry out any transaction in the shares of the Company.

Statement of Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted the required statement of Conduct. All employees are aware of this code and are requested to observe

rules of conduct of business and regulations.

Directors' Training Program

Details have been provided in Statement of Compliance.

Earnings per Share

Earning per share of the Company is Rs 0.335 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017 Rs 1.180).

Dividend

No dividend is declared for the year ended 31 December 2018 in the Board meeting held on March 26, 2019.

Outlook

Your company's management is endeavouring to improve the company's business by establishing credit lines with different banks to increase
earnings and return for shareholders. Meanwhile the Company is reviewing various business options and its future course of action, including
the re-adoption of Deposit taking model keeping in view the NBFC Regulatory Framework.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



Auditors

The present auditors BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.
Acknowledgement
We, the directors of SIBL, are grateful to the SECP, Stock Exchanges and other regulators for their cooperation and support. We do

acknowledge and are thankful to our shareholders for their support and cooperation. We also acknowledge and are thankful for the untiring
efforts of the management and staff.

On behalf of the Board

Haji Jan Muhammad Zafar M Sheikh
Chairman / Director Chief Executive Officer
Karachi

26 March 2019

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. The Company
has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

10.

11.

The total number of directors are 7(Seven) consisting of male directors. The Board was constituted prior to the notification of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017, therefore, the Company will appoint a female director at
the time of next election of Directors to comply with this requirement of the Regulations.

The composition of Board is as follows:

Category Name
a) IndependentDirector: Mr. Shaikh Abdullah
Mr. Sheikh Asim Rafiq
Mr. Karim Muhammad Munir
b)  OtherNon-executiveDirector: Mr. Haji Jan Muhammad
Mr. Muhammad Mehboob
Mr. Muhammad Shoaib
¢) ExecutiveDirector: Mr. Zafar M Sheikh

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including this Company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout
the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. A complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered
by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

All meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman of the Board and in his absence by the Director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with aspect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act
and these Regulations.

The Board has arranged Director’s Training program for Mr. Muhammad Mehboob and Mr. Muhammad Shoaib. Furthermore,
Mr. Haji Jan Muhammad is exempt from Director’s Training program. The Board is committed to compliance with corporate

governance regulations and plans fulfillment of the Directors’ Training program within the prescribed timelines

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a)  Audit Committee:
1. Mr. Shaikh Abdullah (Chairman);
2. Mr. Haji Jan Muhammad (Non-executive Director)
3. Mr. Shaikh Asim Rafiq (Independent Director)
4. Mr. Karim Muhammad Munir (Independent Director)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:
1. Mr. Karim Muhammad Munir (Chairman);
2. Mr. Muhammad Mehboob (Non-executive Director)
3. Mr. Zafar. M. Sheikh (Chief Executive)

13. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequencies of the meetings of the committees are as follows;
Committee Frequency of meeting
Audit Committee 4 Quarterly meetings
HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly
15. The Board has appointed Mr. Ali Somani as Head of Internal Audit who is considered suitably qualified and is conversant with

the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance
with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except following;

a. Regulation 10(2) which requires the Board of Directors of the Company to carry out annual review of business risks.
b. Regulation 10(3)(vii) which requires the Board of Directors to define the level of materiality, keeping in view the specific
circumstances of the company and the recommendations of any technical or executive sub-committee of the board that may

be set up for the purpose.

c. Regulation 10(6) which requires all directors of a company to attend its general meeting(s), (ordinary and extra-ordinary)
unless precluded from doing so due to any reasonable cause.

d. Regulation 19 which requires the Company to make appropriate arrangements to carry out orientation courses for their directors
to acquaint them with these Regulations, applicable laws, their duties and responsibilities to enable them to effectively govern
the affairs of the listed company for and on behalf of shareholders.

Karachi, 26 March 2019

HAJI JAN MUHAMMAD ZAFAR M SHEIKH
CHAIRMAN CEO

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SECURITY INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED ON
THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
(the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Security Investment Bank Limited (the Company) for the year ended December
31, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place
before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried
out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately
reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph references
where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph

S. no Reference Description

I 18 The Board of Directors of the Company have not carried out annual review of business risks.

The Board of Directors has not defined the level of materiality, keeping in view the specific
circumstances of the company and the recommendations of any technical or executive sub-
committee of the board that may be set up for the purpose.

None of the Directors of the company has attended its general meeting held on April 23,
2018.

The Company has not made appropriate arrangements to carry out orientation courses for
their directors to acquaint them with these Regulations, applicable laws, their duties and
responsibilities to enable them to effectively govern the affairs of the listed company for and
on behalf of shareholders.

KARACHI CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DATED: March 26, 2019 Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz
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AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON AUDIT OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the unconsolidated financial statements of SECURITY INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise
of the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

Except for the effect of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section, in our opinion, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account,
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Asat December 31, 2018, short term financing to H.M. Esmail & Co. Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private)
Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties aggregated to Rs. 546.939 million out of which financing amounting to Rs. 292.887
million were rolled over. Moreover, during the period, an amount of Rs. 72.416 million was receivable from H.M. Esmail & Co.
Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private) Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties in respect of markup
accrued which was converted into finance facility. However, we have not been able to ascertain the classification and provisioning
of financing portfolio on the basis of time-based criteria as required by Regulation 25 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 as the financing facilities are being renewed and rolled over at the maturity dates and, accordingly, the
related impact of income recognized during the year on such financing could not be ascertained. Moreover, SECP vide its letter No.
SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the holding company to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments
against all financing extended by the holding company to the related parties. The holding company in response to the said letter has
submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018 and communicated the same to the related
parties which has been acknowledged by related parties, however, no formal revision in the original terms of contract has been made
between the holding company and the related parties. However, classification of the financing to related parties between current and
non-current has been made in the financial statements based on the original contract between parties.

2. The Company has not performed subjective evaluation of its financing portfolio as required under Regulation 25 of Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and has not carried out impairment review as required by International
Accounting Standard 39 - Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement despite presence of impairment indicators in the
portfolio. The Company has not recorded any provision for impairment based on subjective evaluation of the borrowers. Accordingly,
we are unable to confirm the valuation and recoverability of short term financing in the unconsolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to;

1. Note 1.2 to the unconsolidated financial statements which inter-alia states that the license of the Company to carry out the investment
finance services as a Non-Banking Finance Company is valid till May 29, 2019.
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2. Note 13.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements which provides details regarding non- compliance with the Regulation 19(h),
Regulation 17(1), Regulation 17(2), Regulation 18A and Regulation 23 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008.

3. Note 8.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements which inter-alia states that during the year, the Company purchased property from
M/s ARY Communications Limited vide Agreement to Sell entered into with M/s ARY Communications Limited dated December
26, 2018, the title of which is in the process of being transferred into the name of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017, were audited by another firm of Chartered
accountants who had expressed an unqualified opinion thereon vide their report dated March 24, 2018.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.NO

Key audit matter(s)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Control environment relating to the financial reporting process and related IT systems

The IT control environment relating to the financial reporting
process and the application controls of individual IT systems
have an impact on the selected audit approach.

As the unconsolidated financial statements are based on
extensive number of data flows from IT systems, consequently
the financial reporting control environment is determined as
a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included evaluation of the financial
reporting process and related control environment, as well as
testing of the effectiveness of controls including general IT
controls. Our audit procedures focused on testing the
reconciliation and approval controls as well as on evaluating
the administration of access rights.

Our audit procedures extensively consisted of several
substantive procedures as well as data analysis relating to the
most significant balances on the profit and loss account and
statement of financial position.

Valuation of investments

The Company's investment comprises investments in equity
and debt instruments. As at December 31, 2018 total net
investment amount to Rs. 62.714 million.

The valuation of these investments is made using different
valuation techniques as disclosed in note 41 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company's accounting policy and movement in the year
in the investments balances are disclosed in note 14 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

We have considered this as a key audit matter in view of the
significance of these investments in relation to the total assets
of the Company.

Valuation of investments were addressed by applying following
procedures:

- Evaluated the design and implementation of key control
around investments;

- Re-performed valuation to assess that investments are
carried as per the valuation methodology specified in
the accounting policies;

- Performed purchases and sales testing on sample basis
of trades made during the year and checked that
transaction were recorded in the correct period as part
of investment in case of purchases.
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S.NO | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit

- Checked the existence of the securities from the Central
Depository Company's report;

- We also reviewed management's assessment of whether
there are any indicators of impairment including those
securities that are not actively traded; and

- Furthermore, we also assessed the adequacy of the
respective disclosure relating to investments as disclosed
in the unconsolidated financial statements.

3. Financing to related parties

As disclosed in note 11 and 13 of the unconsolidated financial Our audit procedures include the following:

statements, as at December 31, 2018, short term and long-

term financing to related parties aggregated to Rs. 546.939 - Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of design and

million. Financing made to related parties is 99% of total implementation of key controls related to the credit

financing of the Company and represents 67% of total assets approval process, post approval credit management,

and 71% of total equity of the Company. loan grading system, collateral monitoring and loan
impairment assessment.

Further, the assessment of provision of non- performing

finances provided to related parties involves significant - Adopted a risk based sampling approach and checked

judgement and use of management assumption both the customers' repayment behavior and evaluated the

subjectively and objectively. The identification of provision Company's loan classification taking into consideration

and the determination of the recoverable amount involve the credit committee reports, customers' financial

various assumption and factor including the financial conditions information collateral valuation report and other

of the counter party, timing and amount of expected future available information.

cash flows including the forced sales value (FSV) benefits

on the securities pledged. - Assessed the adequacy of the provision for loan losses
by testing the key assumptions and calculations for

Due to the significance of transactions involving related parties loss allowance calculation as required by NBFC

and the factors detailed above, we have considered the Regulations, 2008 and management's assumption.

financing to related parties as a key audit matter.

- Assessed the adequacy of the respective disclosures
relating to loan and finances stated in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

3. Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is in highly regulated industry and is governed
by stringent laws and regulations which mainly include Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, various circulars issued
by the SECP from time to time to regulate the business of the
Company. The Company is required to comply with these
rules and regulations.

We have considered compliance with laws and regulation as
a key audit matter since failure to comply with any of these
applicable laws and regulations could have a material financial
impact on the business of the Company.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included the
following:

Obtained an understanding of the relevant legal and regulatory
framework within which the Company operates and assessed
the design and operation of its key controls over this
framework.

Discussed the applicable policies and procedures with senior
management and reviewed Board papers, and internal audit
reports for any recorded instances of potential non-compliance,
and maintained a high level of vigilance when carrying out
our other audit procedures for indications of non-compliance.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.




S.NO | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit
Reviewed the Company's documentation and correspondence
with the regulators.
4. First time application of Third and Fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 3.1 to the unconsolidated financial
statements, the Third and Fourth Schedules to the Companies
Act, 2017 became applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company's annual unconsolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The Companies Act, 2017 (including third and fourth
schedules) forms an integral part of the statutory financial
reporting framework as applicable to the Company and
amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures
in relation to various elements of the financial statements.

As part of this transition to the requirements of the said Third
and Fourth schedules, the management made certain
amendments in disclosures required in the Company's

Our audit procedures include the following:

- Considered the management's process to identify the
necessary amendments required in the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements.

- Evaluated the results of management's analysis and
key decisions taken in respect of the transition, using
our knowledge of the relevant requirements of the
Third and fourth Schedules to the Companies Act, 2017
and our understanding of the Company's operations
and business.

- Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
additional disclosures and changes to the previous

disclosures made in the annexed Company's
unconsolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements.

unconsolidated financial statements.

We consider it as a key audit matter in view of the extensive
impacts in the unconsolidated financial statements due to the
Companies Act, 2017.

Information other than the unconsolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and its Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Management Company.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion, except for adjustment in respect of matter stated in basis for qualified opinion
section above:

a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's business;
and

d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Raheel Shahnawaz.

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Karachi CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2018 2017
ASSETS Note Rupees:
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 8 39,904,411 9,172,179
Intangible assets 9 2,500,000 2,500,000
Long term investments 10 50,000,000 50,000,000
Long term financing 11 3,878,461 12,942,646
Long term advances 12 2,500,000 2,500,000
Deferred tax asset - net 24 - 8,599,833
98,782,872 85,714,658
CURRENT ASSETS
Short term financing 13 555,761,938 414,827,758
Short term investments 14 62,714,036 5,836,219
Loans and advances 15 6,322,794 1,845,443
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 4,018,373 10,541,924
Accrued interest 17 2,658,841 41,139,793
Tax refund due from Government 18 79,158,655 84,189,032
Cash and bank balances 19 9,455,215 34,443,155
720,089,852 592,823,324
TOTAL ASSETS 818,872,724 678,537,982
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2017: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 20 514,335,580 514,335,580
Statutory reserves 21 162,897,175 159,452,163
Deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax 22 (287,166) -
Accumulated losses (78,053,895) (91,833,944)
598,891,694 581,953,799
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subordinated loan 23 180,000,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities - net 24 2,552,146 -
182,552,146 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings 25 2,759,096 37,398,225
Short term deposits 26 - 7,700,000
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued and other liabilities 27 32,575,205 49,391,375
37,428,884 96,584,183
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 818,872,724 678,537,982
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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INVESTMENT
BANK LTD.

UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
Note ----—--—--—--Rupees----------
Income
Income on financing and placements 29 67,371,883 51,012,119
Return on securities 30 1,868,414 1,044,534
Loss on sale of investments - (1,774)
Profit on deposit with banks 1,623,897 152,965
Other income 31 2,460,627 5,524,037
73,324,821 57,731,881
Expenditure
Financial charges 32 8,693,099 3,122,524
Administrative expenses 33 30,659,793 32,516,195
39,352,892 35,638,719
Operating profit before taxation 33,971,929 22,093,162
Realized gain on disposal of PSX shares transferred from
unrealized gain - 51,614,948
Profit before taxation 33,971,929 73,708,110
Taxation
Current (5,594,889) (3,512,930)
Deferred (11,151,979) (9,516,269)
34 (16,746,868) (13,029,199)
Net profit after tax 17,225,061 60,678,911
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 35 0.335 1.180
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
---------- Rupees----------
Net profit after tax 17,225,061 60,678,911
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income
Deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax (287,166) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,937,895 60,678,911
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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INVESTMENT
BANK LTD.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for non cash and other items

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of shares

Loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets
Realized gain on remeasurement of PSX shares

Cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets

Financing and placements

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Accrued interest

(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities

Short term deposits
Short term borrowings
Accrued and other liabilities

Net change in operating assets and liabilities
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets - net
Investment in quoted shares
Investment in government securities
Sale of investments (shares)

Sale of securities

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing
Subordinated loans

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2018 2017
---------- Rupees----------
33,971,929 73,708,110
1,746,242 1,811,792
- (1,748,226)
42,406 (212,287)
- (51,614,948)
1,788,648 (51,763,669)
35,760,577 21,944,441
(140,934,180) (122,770,622)
(4,477,351) 807,470
6,523,551 (1,837,290)
38,480,952 8,302,912
(100,407,028) (115,497,530)
(7,700,000) -
(34,639,129) 37,398,225
(16,816,170) 8,977,311
(59,155,299) 46,375,536
(159,562,327) (69,121,994)
(564,512) (500,968)
(124,366,262) (47,678,521)
(32,520,880) (72,980)
(32,164,983) -
(25,000,000) -
- 1,607,374
- 67,324,040
(89,685,863) 68,858,434
9,064,185 4,823,544
180,000,000 -
189,064,185 4,823,544
(24,987,940) 26,003,457
34,443,155 8,439,698
9,455,215 34,443,155

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SHAKEEL AHMED
CFO

ZAFAR M. SHEIKH
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Security Investment Bank Ltd.

HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Reserves A
Gain / (loss) on
Issued, remeasurement
subscribed and Statutory Accumulated of available for Total
paidup capital reserve losses sale investment
Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2017 514335580 147,316,381  (140,377,073) 51,614,948 572,889,836

Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2017

Profit for the year - - 60,678,911 (51,614,948) 9,063,963

Other comprehensive income - - - - -

- - 60,678,911 (51,614,948) 9,063,963
Statutory reserve - 12,135,782 (12,135,782) - -
- 12,135,782 48,543,129 (51,614,948) 9,063,963
Balance as at December 31, 2017 514,335,580 159,452,163 (91,833,944) - 581,953,799
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2018
Profit for the year - - 17,225,061 - 17,225,061
Other comprehensive income - - - (287,166) (287,166)
- - 17,225,061 (287,166) 16,937,895
Statutory reserve - 3,445,012 (3,445,012) - -
- 3,445,012 13,780,049 (287,166) 16,937,895
Balance as at December 31, 2018 514,335,580 162,897,175 (78,053,895) (287,166) 598,891,694

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

3.1

STATUS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Security Investment Bank Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on May 23, 1991 and
started its commercial operations on December 31, 1991. Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company is licensed to carry out business of investment finance services as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under
section 282C of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as amended
through SRO 1002 (I) /2015 dated October 15, 2015 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations
2008 as amended through SRO 1160(I) / 2015 dated November 25, 2015 (previously this was covered under SRO 585(1)/87 dated
July 13, 1987, issued by the Ministry of Finance). The license is valid until May 29, 2019.

The Company is in the process of getting its credit rating renewed. Previously, JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has
placed the rating of the Company for medium to long-term rating at 'BBB'+ (Triple B plus) and the short-term rating at 'A-2' (A
two) on 'Rating Watch Developing' status.

In the year 2016, the Company made an investment in newly incorporated wholly owned subsidiary company namely Security
Capital & Investment (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 50 million. As per the agreement dated September 07, 2016 between
the Company and the subsidiary, the Company ceded the legal right on Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) and 1,602,953
shares of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and Pakistan Mercantile Exchange (PMEX) membership card to the
subsidiary. During the year 2017, the TREC has been transferred by the Company in the name of the subsidiary. However, title
of shares of PSX and PMEX card has not yet been transferred in the name of the subsidiary due to the reason that the subsidiary
has not obtained license to deal as broker from SECP till the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at Flat No. 4, 3rd Floor, Al-Baber Centre, Main Markaz, F-8, Islamabad. The
Company has a regional office at Suite no. 502, 5th Floor, Madina City Mall, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar Karachi.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Unconsolidated financial statements

These are the unconsolidated financial statements (therein after referred as the financial statements) of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of direct or indirect equity interest rather than on the basis of reported results
and net assets of the investee. Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared separately.

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS
Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and directives issued by SECP. Where provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules,
the NBFC Regulations and directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and directives issued by SECP have been followed.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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The third and fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to Company for the first time for the preparation
of these unconsolidated financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its third and fourth schedules) forms an integral
part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company. Specific additional disclosures and changes to the
existing disclosures have been included in these unconsolidated financial statements.

The SECP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standards, IAS-, ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ through Circular No dated August 13, 2003 to NBFCs providing investment finance services, discounting services
and housing finance services. The SECP has also deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard, IFRS-
7, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ through Circular No. 411(I)/2008 dated April 28, 2008 to NBFCs providing investment:
finance services, discounting services and housing finance services. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not
been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and rounded to the nearest Rupee.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

Amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Company

The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which
became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the interaction of
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Reissue to incorporate a hedge accounting
chapter and permit the early application of the requirements for
presenting in other comprehensive income the 'own credit' gains
or losses on financial liabilities designated under the fair value
option without early applying the other requirements of IFRS 9 January 01, 2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment,
general hedge accounting and derecognition January 01, 2018

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture Immediately

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor

and its associate or joint venture Immediately

IAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments to clarify transfers or property
to, or from, investment property January 01, 2018

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Amendments to clarify the classification
and measurement of share-based payment transactions January 01, 2018

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements made to IFRS that became
effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 —2016) Cycle:
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards January 01, 2018
IAS 28 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards January 01, 2018

Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standard:
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)

Conceptual framework for Financial reporting 2018 - Original Issue March 2018

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply the
hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value hedge of
the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of financial
assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied, and to
extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet the 'own
use' scope exception July 01, 2018

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures - Additional hedge
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting
from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9 July 01, 2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding prepayment
features with negative compensation and modifications of

financial liabilities January 01, 2019

IAS 19 Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan amendments,
curtailments or settlements January 01, 2019

IFRS 3 Business Combinations Amendments to clarify the definition of a
business January 1, 2020

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures January 01, 2019

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against respective standards:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2015 — 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have been adopted
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard:

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments July 01, 2018

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which
have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The Company expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will not have any material
impact and therefore will not affect the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aftect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates, underlying assumptions and judgments
are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments
which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

(a) determining the residual values and useful lives of property and equipment (Note 7.1)
(b) classification of investments (Note 7.4 and 7.5)

(c) recognition of taxation and deferred tax (Note 17.7) and

(d) accounting for post employment benefits (Note 7.9)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for held for trading
and available for sale investments. In these unconsolidated financial statements, except for the amount reflected in cash flow
statements, all the transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method in accordance with the rate specified in note
8 to these unconsolidated financial statements, whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. Full month's
depreciation is charged on additions during the month in which asset is acquired, while no depreciation is charged in the month
of disposal.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at each statement of financial position date.
Minor renewals or replacements, maintenance, repairs and profit or loss on disposal of fixed assets are included in current year's

income. Major renewals and repairs are capitalized.

Fully depreciated assets are being kept at written down value of Rs. 1/- each.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Trading rights and membership card

These are stated at cost less impairments, if any. The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether
these are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts, and where carrying value is in excess of recoverable amount, these
are written down to their estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such indications exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Investments in subsidiary

Investment in unquoted subsidiary is initially valued at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying
amount of the investment to assess whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Investments

Held-to-maturity

Investment with fixed maturity where management has both the intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-to-
maturity.

Available-for-sale

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
to interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale.

Held-for-trading

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in price or dealer's
margin are classified as held-for-trading.

Recognition and measurement
All investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments available for sale and investments held for trading for which active market exists,
are measured at market value using rates quoted on stock exchange quotes and broker's quotations. In case of available for sale
investments, any difference between the carrying value and the revalued amount is taken to surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of
investments account, until realized on disposal. At the time of disposal the respective surplus or deficit is transferred to income
currently. Amortization cost is charged to profit and loss account.

Investments held till maturity are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment, if any. The
amortization for the period has been charged to the profit and loss account.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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7.6 Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. This
objective evidence of impairment of fixed income securities is determined in accordance with provisioning criteria for non
performing exposures as per the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012.

7.7 Securities under repurchase / reverse repurchase agreement

Transactions of repurchase / resale of government securities, term finance certificates and shares are entered into at contracted
rates for specified period of time and are accounted for as follows:

Repurchase agreements
The securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be recognized
in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investments. Amounts received under these
agreements are included in borrowings from institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up
on borrowings from institutions and accrued as expense over the life of the repo agreement.
Reverse repurchase agreements
The securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repo) are not recognized
in the balance sheet. Amounts paid under these obligations are included in placements. The difference between purchase and resale
price is accrued as income over the life of the reverse repo agreement.

7.8 Trade date and settlement date accounting
All "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset is
delivered to or by the Company. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are those, the contract for which requires
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

7.9 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved Provident Fund Scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are
made, both by the Company and the employee, to the fund @10% of basic salary.

8.0 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

7.10 Financial instruments
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the Company looses control of the contractual rights that
comprise the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is taken to income currently.

7.11 Classification of deposits and financing

Deposits and financing are classified as long and short term considering the remaining period at the balance sheet date.
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Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand and at bank are carried at nominal amounts.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand, cash with banks in current and deposit account and short term clean placement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue

Income on financing, placement, government securities, profit on deposits and term finance certificates are generally recognized
on time proportion basis taking into account the principal / net investment outstanding and applicable rates of profit / return
thereon. Income on discounted commercial papers is recognized on a time proportion basis over the life of instruments. Where
recovery is considered doubtful, income is recognized on receipt basis.

Dividends on equity investments are recognized as income when the right to receive payment is established.

Income from capital gains is recognized on earned basis.

Fee, commission, liquidated damages etc. are recorded on earned basis except which is spread over the time proportion.

Finance cost

Finance cost includes return on deposits and borrowings which are recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account
the relevant issue date and final maturity date.

Taxation

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The Charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates ( and tax laws ) that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments is charged or credited directly to the same account.
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7.18 Related party transactions
All transactions with the related parties are priced on arm’s length basis.

7.19 Provision for doubtful debts on financing
The Company reviews its doubtful debts at each reporting date to assess whether provision / (income suspension) should be
recorded in the profit and loss account in addition to the mandatory provision / (income suspension) required in accordance with
the requirements of the NBFC Regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In particular, calculating
the provision for doutful debts on financing is subject to numerous judgments, estimates and timing of future cash flows. Such
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
provisions.

7.20 Dividend distributions and appropriations
Dividend distributions and appropriations other than statutory appropriations are recorded in the period in which they are approved.

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Furniture
Description Note | Building and le:)mla.uter atnd Vehicles |Generator Teslepthone Total
fixtures quipments ystem
(Rupees)
Year ended December 31, 2018
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) - 6,483,079 1,321,473 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,172,179
Additions (at cost) 8.1 32,000,000 254,980 338,400 - - 10,000 32,603,380
Disposals (NBV) - “) (60,831) (32,918) - (31,153)  (124,906)
Depreciation charge (53,334)  (881,656) (563,508)  (196,721) (23,301) (27,722) (1,746,242)
Closing net book value 31,946,666 5,856,399 1,035,534 837,833 73,728 154,251 39,904,411
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 32,000,000 8,969,102 3,448,967 940,501 582,736 253,969 46,195,275
Accumulated depreciation (53,334) (3,112,703) (2,413,433)  (102,668) (509,008) (99,718)  (6,290,864)
Net book value 31,946,666 5,856,399 1,035,534 837,833 73,728 154,251 39,904,411
Year ended December 31, 2017
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) - 6,891,513 1,659,442 1,774,890 155,304 217,555 10,698,704
Additions (at cost) - 442,384 227,171 987,525 - 12,400 1,669,480
Disposals (NBV) - - (2,513) (1,381,700) - - (1,384,213)
Depreciation charge - (850,818) (562,627)  (313,243) (58,275) (26,829) (1,811,792)
Closing net book value - 6,483,079 1,321,473 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,172,179
Gross carrying value basis
Cost - 8,764,122 3,237,687 987,526 582,736 302,382 13,874,453
Accumulated depreciation - (2,281,043) (1,916,214) 79,946 (485,707) (99,256) (4,702,274)
Net book value - 6,483,079 1,321,473 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,172,179
Depreciation rate % per annum 2 10 20 20 10 10
8.1 During the year, the Company purchased from M/s ARY Communications Limited office no. 502, 503 and 504 with total covered

area of 3756.19 square feet situated at Sth floor, Madina City Mall, plot no. 27, sheet no. SB-5, Abdullah Haroon road, Saddar,
Karachi vide Agreement to Sell entered into with M/s ARY Communications Limited dated December 26, 2018. The title of the
said property acquired is in the process of being transferred into the name of the Company.
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Cost and accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year include an amount of Rs. 1,224,988/- (2017 : Rs. 538,973/-) in respect

of fully depreciated assets still in use.

Schedule of disposal of fixed assets

) Cost Accumulate | Written Sale Capital Mode of
Particulars d down | proceeds | gain / (loss) a4 " Sold to Address
(Rupees) 3
Furniture - Islamabad office 50,000 49,996 4 50,000 49,996  Negotiation Javed Advocate  Office no. 55, Blue area, Islamabad
Vehicle- Bike 47,025 14,107 32918 13,000 (19,918)  Negotiation Bilawal House no. 123, Sher Muhammad street 1, DHA Phase 5, Karachi
Office Equipment - Batteries 127,120 66,289 60,831 12,500 (48,331) Negotiation ~ Zakir Mehmood ~House no. 102 Jamshid Road, Karachi
Telephone - Ipad 58,413 27,260 31,153 7,000 (24,153)  Negotiation Saima Room No. 17 Lakhani Centre, Gulistan e Jauhar, Karachi
282,558 157,652 124,906 82,500 (42,406)
2018 2017
Note  -——--———- Rupees --—------—-—-
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Corporate membership of the PMEX 2,500,000 2,500,000
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment - subsidiary
5,000,000 ordinary shares of Security Capital &
Investments (Private) Limited @ Rs. 10/- each 10.1 50,000,000 50,000,000

This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as detailed in note 1 to this unconsolidated financial
statements. Break up value per share is Rs. 12.28 (2017: Rs. 14.39).

LONG TERM FINANCING
Murabaha Financing

Secured and considered good
Murabaha finance

Associated companies 12.1 7,659,053 21,135,840

Others 6,001,732 6,719,717
Less: Deferred Murabaha income (959,291) (2,260,448)
Murabaha receivable 11.1 12,701,494 25,595,109
Less: Current maturity (8,823,033)  (12,652,463)

3,878,461 12,942,646

These represent financing of vehicle on murabaha basis against hypothecation of vehicles and machinery for a period of 3 years
to 5 years, carrying mark up at 1 Year KIBOR + 3% per annum (2017: 1 Year KIBOR+3%).

LONG TERM ADVANCE

For office premises 12.1 2,500,000 2,500,000

This amount represents advance paid for office space in National Commodity Exchange Limited Building (NCEL) in the year
2003-04 and 2004-05. The said building is still under construction.

SHORT TERM FINANCING 2018 2017
Note  -----—-----——- Rupees ---------——-
Secured and considered good
- Associated companies 546,938,905 371,340,338
- Others - 30,834,957
Current maturity under murabaha finance 8,823,033 12,652,463

13.1 & 13.2 555,761,938 414,827,758
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13.1 Non-compliance with Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations)

13.1.1 Regulation 19(h) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations) states that an
NBFC shall not provide finance to its major sharecholders, chief executive, directors, key executives firms or companies in which
it or any of its chief executive, directors, key executives, or their close relatives are interested as a partner, director, guarantor or
major shareholder. However, the Company has primarily provided financing facilities to its related parties.

During the year 2016, in response to amendments in the Regulations as to restriction imposed on financing made to related parties
as stated in regulation 19(h), the Company vide letter dated February 4, 2016 requested Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (the Commission) to grant relaxation from regulation 19(h). The Commission vide its letter dated February 17, 2016
refused the relaxation and directed the Company to comply with the amended Regulations within stipulated time period of six
months. The Company vide letter dated April 18, 2016 again requested for the relaxation which was not responded by the
Commission.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed the
Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 19(h) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Company to provide
detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Company. The Company in response to the said letter
has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Company vide its letter
dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-II/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Company vide its letter
dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing in
compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

13.1.2 Regulation 17(1) of the Regulations states that the total outstanding Exposure (fund based and non-fund based) by an NBFC to
a person shall not at any time exceed 20% of the equity of an NBFC (as disclosed in the latest financial statements), provided
that the maximum outstanding fund-based Exposure does not exceed 15% of the equity of an NBFC. However, as at December
31, 2018, the Company has breached the fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited and New
Delite Company Limited by 15.07% and 1.01% respectively and has breached the fund based and non-fund based exposure limits
with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited by 10.07%.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed the
Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 17(1) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Company to provide
detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Company. The Company in response to the said letter
has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Company vide its letter
dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-II/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Company vide its letter

dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing in
compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.
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Regulation 17(2) of the Regulations states that the total outstanding Exposure (fund based and non-fund based) by an NBFC to
any group shall not exceed twenty-five per cent (25) of the equity of an NBFC (as disclosed in the latest financial statements),
provided that the maximum outstanding fund-based Exposure does not exceed twenty per cent (20) of the equity of an NBFC.
However, as at December 31, 2018, the Company has breached the fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail &

Company Limited, New Delite Company Limited and ARY Services (Private) Limited by 41.59% and fund based and non-fund
based exposure by 43.53% with respect to these companies.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24, 2018 in respect of inspection of the Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed the
Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 17(2) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Company to provide
detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Company. The Company in response to the said letter
has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Company vide its letter
dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-1I/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Company vide its letter
dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing in
compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 18A of the Regulations states that an NBFC may provide unsecured Finance up to Rs. 200,000/- (Rupees two hundred
thousand only) to a single borrower. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Company has extended unsecured financing to H.M.
Esmail & Company Limited, New Delite Company Limited and ARY Services (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 161.529 million,
Rs. 59.253 million, Rs. 75.997 million and Rs. 52.208 million respectively.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed the
Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 18A of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Company to provide
detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Company. The Company in response to the said letter
has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Company vide its letter
dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-II/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Company vide its letter
dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing in
compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 23 of the Regulations states that an NBFC while taking an Exposure shall not provide finance if the total Exposure
availed by the Borrower from financial institutions exceeds 10 times the Equity of the Borrower as disclosed in the financial
statements of the Borrower, provided that the fund-based Exposure of a Borrower shall not exceed 4 times of its equity as disclosed
in the Borrower’s latest financial statements. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Company has breached the fund based and
fund/non-fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited. Further, the Company has breached the
fund based exposure limits with respect to New Delite Company Limited and Madina Electronics by 1.36 and 277.39 times,
respectively, and has breached the fund/non-fund based respect to New Delite Company Limited and Madina Electronics by 1.64
and 632.13 times, respectively. Moreover, the equity of related party ARY Services (Private) Limited based on its financial
statements as at December 31, 2018 is negative Rs. 227.20 million. However, Company has provided finance facilities as at
December 31, 2018 to ARY Services (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 100 million.
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During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed the
Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 23 of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Company to provide
detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Company. The Company in response to the said letter
has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Company vide its letter
dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-1I/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Company vide its letter
dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing in
compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

13.1.6  Regulation 19(g) of the Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 states that an NBFC shall not
hold shares on aggregate basis, whether as pledgee, or absolute owner, of an amount exceeding 15% of the paid-up share capital
of that company or 15% of its own equity, whichever is less. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Company has breached
exposure limit with respect to Lucky Cement Limited by 2.30% of its own equity.

13.2 These are secured by way of hypothecation or a charge on assets of customers, pledge of certificates of deposits and pledge of
listed shares. The mark-up rates are 13% per annum (2017: 12%).

2018 2017
14 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note ———Rupees———
Held to maturity
Market Treasury Bills 25,000,000 -
Auvailable for sale
Term Finance Certificates 14.1 5,836,219 5,836,219
Investment in equity shares 14.2 31,877,817 -
62,714,036 5,836,219
14.1 Particulars of listed Term Finance Certificates (TFC) :
2018 2017
Issuer of TFC No. of Certificates Cost || Market Value Cost || Market value
2018 2017 Rupees
Telecard Limited 14.1.1 5,000 5,000 7,781,625 5,836,219 7,781,625 5,836,219
14.1.1 Terms of redemption of listed TFCs are as follows:
Particulars Certificates denomination Profit rate per annum Profit payment Redemption terms
Telecard Limited 5,000 3.75% over 6 months KIBOR. Semi-annually  Originally Eight years from
May 2005. Then rescheduled
Valuation of certificates 5,000 up to May 27, 2015. Now it
Redemption up to December 31, 2018 3,467 is  restructured to  be
Balance as at December 31, 2018 1,533 redeemable over the period of

5 years with 2 years grace
period carrying mark up @ 3
months KIBOR+0%.
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14.1.2  Telecard Limited has restructured its TFCs redemption schedule on December 30, 2011 relating to the default of payment of
redemption due on May 27, 2011, without any consequences or delay penalties after the approval obtained by the Company from
the TFC holders upon Company's request. The said restructuring has resulted in lower current maturity. As a result, the last
redemption date has been extended to May 27, 2015, instead of the revised final redemption date of November 27, 2013. In the
year 2015 it is restructured to be redeemable over the period of 5 years with 2 years grace period carrying mark up @ 3 months
KIBOR + 0%.

The TFCs are secured against a first specific charge over the fixed assets of the Company, aggregating to Rs. 800 million and
specific charge over the intangible assets (frequency spectrum) procured from the Pakistan Telecommunication Authority.

14.2 Quoted Shares

All shares have face value of Rs. 10/- each unless identified otherwise.

2018 2017 2018 2017
No. of ordinary shares Cost Market Cost Market
Value Value
Rupees
Cement
1,747 - Lucky Cement Limited 1,204,766 759,368 - -
Bank
344,118 - Bank Al Habib Limited 23,506,701 23,671,877 - -
Power
86,800 - The Hub Power Company Limited 7,453,516 7,446,572 - -
432,665 - 32,164,983 31,877,817 - -
2018 2017
Note Rupees

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances - considered good
For expenses 6,322,794 1,845,443

16 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposits 361,280 1,526,880
PMEX exposure limits - 1,212,927
KSE exposure limits - 1,250,000
Prepayments 995,396 910,386
Other receivables - considered good 2,661,697 5,641,731

4,018,373 10,541,924

17 ACCRUED INTEREST

Considered good
Income receivable 17.1 2,658,841 41,139,793

17.1  This represents income on financing and government securities not matured / due on December
31, 2018.

18 TAX REFUND DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Advance tax 268,666,855 268,102,343
Less: Provisions for taxation (189,508,200) (183,913,311)
79,158,655 84,189,032
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2018 2017
Note = -————- Rupees-------—--—--—-
19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With State Bank of Pakistan in current account 11,257 29,935
With other banks in
Current accounts 2,196,079 2,111,201
Deposit accounts 19.1 7,223,815 32,285,588
9,419,894 34,396,789
Cash in hand 24,064 16,431
9,455,215 34,443,155
19.1 Rate of return on these deposits accounts range from 5% to 6% per annum (2017: 3% to 4% per annum).
20 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Number of shares

2018 2017
23,552,000 23,552,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid in cash 235,520,000 235,520,000
27,881,558 27,881,558 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each issued as fully paid bonus 278,815,580 278,815,580
51,433,558 51,433,558 514,335,580 514,335,580
21 STATUTORY RESERVES
Statutory reserves 21.1 162,897,175 159,452,163
21.1 This reserve is created at the rate of 20% of profit for the year from ordinary activities after taxation as per management discretion.

However, in prior periods, this reserve was created in compliance with Regulation No. 16 of Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations 2008, as this was mandatory to be created by a deposit taking NBFC. The Company has ceased
to be a deposit taking NBFC in 2016.

2018 2017
Note ----—--—---Rupees-----—---—--
22 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF INVESTMENTS - NET OF TAX
Deficit on revaluation of investment (287,166) -
(287,166) -
23 SUBORDINATED LOAN
Unsecured
Subordinated loan 23.1 180,000,000 -
23.1 This subordinated loan is raised by the Company from Sponsors Directors. The loan is granted for a terms of three years,

commencing from date of the said agreement dated April 10, 2018. The interest rate implicit in the agreement is six month KIBOR,
which is ratified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ( SECP) via letter no. SC/NBFC/SIBL/42/2018/233
dated September 17, 2018. The principal amount and interest thereon will be repayable at the maturity of the loan i.e. April 10,
2021.

In accordance with the requirement of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 and Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (vide SRO No. 1002(1)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 and
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SRO No. 1160(I)/2015 dated November 25, 2015), the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has instructed existing
NBFCs to meet with Minimum Capital requirement of Rs.750 million to raise deposits. In order to avail the license of deposit
taking NBFC, during the year, the Company has raised subordinated loan of Rs. 180 million from related parties under Clause
xix of Rule 2 of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003.

2018 2017
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Note  -—-—-—--—-- Rupees--—-------——-
Deferred tax liability / (asset) arising in respect of:
Accelerated depreciation 2,635,424 543,051
Unrealized gain on revaluation of securities (83,278) -
Tax losses - (9,142,884)

2,552,146 (8,599,833)

Movement in deferred tax

Opening balance (8,599,833) (18,116,102)
Change during the year 11,151,979 9,516,269
Closing balance 2,552,146 (8,599,833)

The Company has an aggregate amount of Rs. nil (2017: Rs. 0.543 million) in respect of unabsorbed tax losses as at December
31, 2018 on which the management has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs. nil (2017: Rs. 8.599 million).

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Short term running finance 25.1 2,759,096 37,398,225

The Company has availed running finance facility from Summit Bank with a limit of Rs. 50 million @ 3 months KIBOR plus
4%. The facility is secured against Rs. 58 million book debts of the Company.

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Others 26.1 - 7,700,000

During the year, SECP has conducted an inspection of the Company and pointed out that the Company is no more a deposit taking
NBEFC as the Company do not meet minimum capital requirement of Rs. 750 million to raise deposits as per schedule I of
Regulation No. 4 of Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. Therefore, it is required to encash
all the existing certificates of investments (COI's) issued previously.

In the year 2008, the Company had issued certificate of investments (COIs) amounting to Rs. 7.70 million to Faisalabad Electric
Supply Company Limited (FESCO) on behalf of New Delite Company (Private) Limited. During the year, the Company has
repaid the same along with interest amounting to Rs. 7.87 million to New Delite Company (Private) Limited against the indemnity
bond.

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES 2018 2017
Note  --—-—--——-—— Rupees------------
Accrued interest
Subordinated loan 7,429,663 -
- 170,877
Other liabilities 7,429,663 170,877
Others
related party 27.1 23,647,873 || 45,718,876
others 1,497,669 3,501,622

25,145,542 49,220,498
32,575,205 49,391,375
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27.1 This includes the amount paid by the wholly owned subsidiary namely Security Capital & Investment (Private) Limited against
purchase of assets (including PMEX membership card) amounting to Rs. 10 million.

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies

Guarantees issued on behalf of customer:
- Associated undertaking

28.2 Commitments

2018 2017
Note  ------------Rupees------------

55,103,000 64,203,000

There were no commitment as at the balance sheet date.

29 INCOME ON FINANCING AND PLACEMENTS

Financing
Demand finance
Murabaha finance
Lease finance

Placements
With financial institution - unsecured
30 RETURN ON SECURITIES
Return on government securities
Return on term finance certificates (TFCs)
Dividend income
31 OTHER INCOME
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Commission
Processing income
Miscellaneous

32 FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on subordinate loan

64,858,461 |[ 48,166,257
1,473,136 || 1,482,070
675,327 || 1,281,054
67,006,924 50,929,381

364,959 82,738
67,371,883 51,012,119

931,145 -
487,770 475,500
449,499 569,034

1,868,414 1,044,534

49,996 212,287
510,737 686,136
493,739 2,012,732

1,406,155 2,612,882
2,460,627 5,524,037

1,148,636 3,122,524
7,544,463 -
8,693,099 3,122,524
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33

33.1

34

34.1

2018 2017
Note ------------Rupees------------
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 17,152,247 17,582,724
Contribution to provident fund 36 398,049 445,572
Rent, rates and taxes 2,194,662 2,299,220
Telephone, telex and fax 615,559 712,503
Electricity, water and gas 717,246 766,085
Printing, postage and stationery 484,826 508,127
Insurance 276,433 542,187
Fees and membership 1,614,000 2,273,383
Brokerage and commission - 441,795
Central Depository Company charges 600,632 679,990
Auditors' remuneration 33.1 472,180 438,070
Legal and professional fees 1,143,162 1,098,800
Vehicle running and maintenance 887,128 597,009
Repairs and maintenance 638,384 448,153
Advertisement 238,990 349,105
Travelling and conveyance 343,404 610,899
Entertainment 575,185 487,474
Depreciation 8 1,746,242 1,811,792
Bank charges 53,899 6,924
Old age benefit 96,200 140,400
Books, periodicals and newspapers 14,235 29,733
Other expenses 397,130 246,250
30,659,793 32,516,195
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audit fee 400,000 406,820
Out of pocket expenses 72,180 31,250
472,180 438,070
TAXATION

Current
for the year 34.1 5,594,889 3,512,930
Deferred 11,151,979 9,516,269
16,746,868 13,029,199

The provision for taxation for the current year has been made by applying alternate corporate tax to Company on income not
covered under fixed / final tax regime; and applying respective rates applicable to income covered under fixed / final tax regime.

The declared results for Assessment years 1993-94, 1994-95 were accepted whereas return of income in respect of Tax years 2004,
2009, 2010 and 2017, are deemed to be assessed in terms of section 120(1)(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the "Ordinance").

The return of income furnished for assessment year 1995-96 to 2001-02 were filed in the status of a public company. However
the status of a banking company was assigned to the Company by the tax department and certain disallowances were made in
the profit and loss expenses. For the assessment year 1995-96 to 2000-01 issues were settled in favor of the Company by the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the ATIR).

Assessment in respect of tax year 2008 was amended vide order dated December 24, 2009 issued under section 122 of the Ordinance
by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the DCIR) creating tax demand of Rs. 37,791,566. The Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (the CIR(A)), which was decided in favor of tax department and the Company filed a
second appeal before ATIR which was also decided against the Company.
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The Company has filed a reference application before Islamabad High Court against the said order of ATIR. The date of hearing
has not yet been fixed.

No additional provision has been made against this demand as the management is confident that reference application will be
decided in favour of the Company.

The return filed by the Company was selected for audit under section 177 of the Ordinance. Information document request was
served under section 176 of the Ordinance which was duly responded. And on the basis of reply submitted and hearing with the
officer the return was amended under section 122(5) creating a tax demand amounting Rs. 14,460,027. Being aggrieved with the
assessment, an appeal against the said order was submitted before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I) which has been
heard for order.

Assessment in respect of tax year 2012 was amended vide assessment order dated February 28, 2014 under section 221/113 of
the Ordinance. A rectification application was filed which was rejected. The order of DCIR was contested before CIR (A) who
remanded back the case to DCIR for further verification. No further notice in this regard has been received by the Company.

The returns filed by the Company for the said years were selected for audit under section 177 of the Ordinance, online showcase
notices were issued but adjournment was asked. However, no further action has been taken by the authorities in this regard.

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented for in these unconsolidated
financial statements as the income of the Company is either subject to minimum tax, special rate of tax or final tax under various
provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of 7.5% on every public company other than a scheduled

bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax a year but does not distribute 40% of accounting profit either through cash dividend
or issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of said tax year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

. . 2018 2017
Basic earning per share
Profit after tax Rs. 17,225,061 60,678,911
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 51,433,558 51,433,558
Earnings per share Rs. 0.335 1.180

Diluted earning per share

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument that would have an
impact on its earnings exercised.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

An amount of Rs. 0.398 million (2017: Rs. 0.446 million) has been charged during the year in respect of contributory provident
fund maintained by the Company.

Disclosure relating to provident fund

The Company operates a recognized Provident Fund (the Fund) for its permanent employees.
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2018 2017 2018 2017
-—--—-Percentage—-—-—- -——--Rupees--—-----

(i) Size of the Fund 2,153,806 6,629,575
(i1) Cost of investments made 2,228,407 6,522,626
(iii) Percentage of investments made 103.46 98.39
(iv) Fair value of investments in government securities 2,228,407 3,064,000
Break up of the investments is as follows:
Bank balance 1275 52.17 274,703 3,458,626
Government securities 90.71 46.22 1,953,704 3,064,000

36.2 Investments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017
and the rules formulated for this purpose.
37 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES
2018 2017
Chief Non-Executive Executive Executives Chief Non-Executive Executive Executives
Executive directors director Executive directors director
Officer Officer
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Directors' meeting fees - 855,000 - - - 910,000 - -
Managerial remuneration 4,494,000 - - - 4,494,000 - - -
Bonus 715,500 - - - 374,500 - - -
Medical expenses 374,496 - - - 374,496 - - -
Provident fund - - - - - - - -
Other benefits 785,876 - - - 705,300 - - -
6,369,872 855,000 - - 5,948,296 910,000 - -
Number of persons 1 6 1 - 1 6 1 -
37.1 The executives of the Company are also entitled to free use of Company owned and maintained vehicles.
37.2 The amount charged in the financial statements as the fee of directors for attending a Board of Directors meeting was Rs. 0.035
million per meeting.
37.3 The current and corresponding year figures include remunerations of Company’s Executives whose basic salary exceeds twelve
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.
38 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments. The Company has diversified its funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy
balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily cashable marketable securities. The maturity profile is monitored on regular basis
by Assets and Liabilities Committee to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. The following are the contractual maturities
of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

December 31, 2018
Upto three More than three Over one year Total
Particulars months months and upto
one year
Rupees

Liabilities
Subordinated loan - - 180,000,000 180,000,000
Short term borrowings 2,759,096 - - 2,759,096
Unclaimed dividend - 2,094,583 - 2,094,583
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 25,145,542 - 7,429,663 32,575,205

27,904,638 2,094,583 187,429,663 217,428,884
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December 31, 2017
Upto three More than three Over one year Total
Particulars months months and upto
one year
Rupees

Liabilities
Short term borrowings 37,398,225 - - 37,398,225
Unclaimed dividend - 2,094,583 - 2,094,583
Short term deposits - 7,700,000 - 7,700,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 170,877 - 49,220,498 49,391,375

37,569,102 9,794,583 49,220,498 96,584,183

39 CREDIT RISK AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counter-parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter-parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of a Company's performance to developments
affecting a particular industry.

The Company follows two sets of guidelines. Firstly, it has its own operating policies duly approved by the Board of Directors.
Secondly, it adheres to the regulations issued by the SECP and SBP. The operating policies define the extent of fund and non-
fund based exposures with reference to a particular sector or group.

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of lending activities to avoid undue concentration
of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business. It also obtains security when appropriate. Details
of industry / sector analysis of finance portfolio is given below:

2018 2017
39.1 Finance Rupees Y% Rupees %
Services 106,292,962 19.43 24,988,040 6.21
Cables and electric goods 440,645,943 80.57 377,187,255 93.79
546,938,905 100.00 402,175,295 100.00

39.2 Geographical Segment
These unconsolidated financial statements represent operations of the Company in Pakistan only.
40 MARKET RISK

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of market risks ( in addition to liquidity and credit risks). Market risk with respect
to the Company’s activities include interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

40.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility when changes in interest rate affect the value of financial instruments. The Company
is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in

a given period. The Company manages this risk by matching the repricing of assets and liabilities.

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and financial liabilities are summarized as follows:
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The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and financial liabilities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2018
Exposed to Interest Rate/ Yield Risk Not Exposed to
Description Total Within one More than one Above five Interest Rate/ Yield
year year and up to five years Risk
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiary 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
Long term financing 12,701,494 8,823,033 3,878,461 - -
Short term financing 546,938,905 546,938,905 - - -
Investment in TFCs 5,836,219 5,836,219 - - -
Investment in T-bills 25,000,000 25,000,000 - - -
Short term investments in quoted shares 31,877,817 - - - 31,877,817
Loans and advances 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 3,022,977 - - - 3,022,977
Accrued interest 2,658,841 - - - 2,658,841
Balances with banks and cash in hand 9,455,215 7,223,815 - - 2,231,400
Total 689,991,468 593,821,972 3,878,461 - 92,291,035
Financial liabilities
Subordinated loan 180,000,000 - 180,000,000 - -
Short term borrowings 2,759,096 2,759,096 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued interest 7,429,663 - - - 7,429,663
Other liabilities 25,145,542 - - - 25,145,542
Total 217,428,884 2,759,096 180,000,000 - 34,669,788
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 591,062,876 (176,121,539) - 57,621,247
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 591,062,876 414,941,337 414,941,337
December 31, 2017
Exposed to Interest Rate/ Yield Risk Not Exposed to
Description Total Within one More than one Above five Interest Rate/ Yield
year year and up to five years Risk
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiary 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
Long term financing 25,595,109 12,652,463 12,942,646
Short term financing 402,175,295 402,175,295 - - -
Investment in TFCs 5,836,219 5,836,219 - - -
Loans and advances 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 9,631,538 - - - 9,631,538
Accrued interest 41,139,793 - - - 41,139,793
Balance with bank and cash in hand 34,443,155 32,285,588 - - 2,157,567
Total 571,321,109 452,949,565 12,942,646 - 105,428,898
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings 37,398,225 37,398,225 - - -
Short term deposit 7,700,000 7,700,000 - - -
Unclaimed dividends 2,094,583 - - - 2,094,583
Accrued interest 170,877 - - - 170,877
Other liabilities 49,220,497 - - - 49,220,497
Total 96,584,182 45,098,225 - - 51,485,957
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 407,851,340 12,942,646 - 53,942,941
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 407,851,340 420,793,986 420,793,986

Mark-up rates are mentioned in the respective notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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40.2 Equity price risk

The Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on
individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Company's senior management on a
regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

40.3 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company is not exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure as it is
not involved in foreign currency transactions.

2018 2017
40.4 Financial instruments by category Rupees ------------
Financial assets
Available for sale carried at fair value
Investments 37,714,036 31,431,328
Held to maturity carried at amortized cost
Long term investments 50,000,000 50,000,000
Market treasury bills 25,000,000 -
Loans and receivables carried at amortized cost
Long term advances 2,500,000 2,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 3,022,977 9,631,538
Accrued interest 2,658,841 41,139,793
Bank balances 9,455,215 34,443,155

130,351,069 169,145,814

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Subordinated loan 180,000,000 -

Short term borrowings 2,759,096 37,398,225
Short term deposits - 7,700,000
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued interest 7,429,663 170,877
Other liabilities 25,145,542 49,220,497

217,428,884 96,584,182

41 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. Consequently differences may arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement
to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at the close of
trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly

occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
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Level 1: fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3:  fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs)

As at December 31, 2018, the Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
'Rupees
Available for sale
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - - 5,836,219 5,836,219
Quoted shares 31,877,817 - - 31,877,817

As at December 31, 2017, the Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

'Rupees

Available for sale
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - - 5,836,219 5,836,219

Quoted shares - - _ _

Valuation techniques

For level 3 investments - investment in respect of term finance certificates, the Company has received Telecard Limited sukuks
which are non tradeable. Accordingly, these are stated at cost.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the changes
have occurred.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Transfers during the year

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

The Company is exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has notified amendments in the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008 (vide
SRO No. 1002(1)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 and SRO No. 1160(1)/2015 dated November 25, 2015). The Board of Directors
in its meeting held on September 07, 2016 has resolved to continue the Company's IFS License as Non Deposit taking Lending
NBFC and, accordingly, the Company is in compliance with Minimum Capital Requirement as stipulated in the NBFC Regulations,
2008.
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BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions and includes subsidiary company, associated companies with or without
common directors, directors and major shareholders and their close family members, key management personnel and retirement
benefit funds. The Company has a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length prices using
comparable uncontrolled price method and are in the normal course of business at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates. Transactions with related parties during the year, other than Director's remuneration given under
note 36 to the unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Transactions During the year

Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Demand Financing made
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 44,847,260 95,300,000
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director - 30,000,000
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 40,505,000 68,000,000
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 100,000,000 83,000,000
185,352,260 276,300,000
Return on financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 33,994,932 26,785,107
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 4,150,956 3,393,901
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 18,628,831 15,950,407
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 8,083,742 1,714,675
64,858,461 47,844,090
Repayment of demand finance by companies
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 8,500,000 64,584,717
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director - 8,400,000
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director - 6,236,566
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 24,556,120 6,072,581
33,056,120 85,293,864
Markup included in principal
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 29,521,115 -
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 6,642,230 -
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 13,403,300 -
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 5,861,042 -
55,427,687 -
Adjustment / Repayment of demand finance after SECP inspection
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 37,839,160 -
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 4,686,047 -
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 20,435,010 -
62,960,217 -
Subordinated loan raised
Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 30,000,000 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
180,000,000 -
Office building purchased
Ary Communication (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 32,000,000 -
Office rent paid
Ary Communication (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 1,096,200 1,096,200
Murabaha finance provided
Zafar M Sheikh Chief Executive Directorship - 2,742,500
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Long term financing recovery
Murabaha financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
New Delite Company Limited
Zafar M Sheikh

Lease financing
New Delite Company Limited

Loans and advances
Car loan
Zafar M Sheikh

Advance against expenses
Security Capital & Investment (Private)
Limited
Sheikh Abdullah

Recovery against car loan
Zafar M Sheikh

Recovery against advance for expenses
Security Capital & Investment (Private)
Limited

Repayment of short term deposit
New Delite Company Limited

Repayment of other liabilities
Security Capital & Investment (Private)
Limited

Other
Contribution to staff provident fund

Guarantee commission income
Madina Electronics
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
ARY Films & TV Production

Balances as at the year end

Long term investments

Security Capital & Investment (Private)

Limited
Long term financing
Murabaha financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
New Delite Company Limited
Zafar M Sheikh

Lease financing
New Delite Company Limited
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Nature of Relation

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking

Chief Executive

Subsidiary Company
Director

Chief Executive

Subsidiary Company

Associated Undertaking

Subsidiary Company

Employee Fund

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking

Subsidiary

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking

Basis of Relation

Common Director
Common Director
Directorship

Common Director

Directorship

Wholly owned subsidiary
Directorship

Directorship

Wholly owned subsidiary

Common Director

Wholly owned subsidiary

Common Director
Common Director
Common Director

Wholly owned subsidiary

Common Director
Common Director
Directorship

Common Director

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
2,431,104 2,217,804
1,758,911 2,521,511
2,291,544 450,956
6,481,559 5,190,271
5,565,922 4,760,078
5,307,000 -
277,905 -
150,000 -
427,905 -
461,901 -
275,835 -
7,700,000 -
10,000,000 -
398,049 445,572
442,393 539,631
27,398 91,000
40,952 55,505
510,743 686,136
50,000,000 50,000,000
472,590 2,903,694
1,049,220 2,808,131
- 2,291,544
5,847,955 11,413,877
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Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Short term financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 264,852,344 236,823,129
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 32,791,140 30,834,957
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 143,002,459 109,529,169
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 106,292,962 24,988,040
546,938,905 402,175,295
Loans and advances
Car loan
Zafar M Sheikh Chief Executive Directorship 4,845,099 -

Advance against expenses
Security Capital & Investment (Private)

Limited Subsidiary Company Wholly owned subsidiary 2,070 -
Sheikh Abdullah Director Directorship 150,000 -
152,070 -
Subordinate loan
Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 30,000,000 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
180,000,000 -
Short term deposits
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director - 7,700,000
Other liabilities
Security Capital & Investment (Private)
Limited Subsidiary Company Wholly owned subsidiary - 10,000,000

Accrued markup on subordinate loan

Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 1,238,275 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 1,031,898 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 1,031,898 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -

7,429,663 -

44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.

45 STAFF STRENGTH

Number of employees at end of the year 15 16
Average number of employees during the year 16 16
46 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of SECURITY INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED and its subsidiary (the
Group), which comprise of the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated profit and loss
account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

Except for the effect of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section, in our opinion, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's affairs as at December 31, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Asat December 31, 2018, short term financing to H.M. Esmail & Co. Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private)
Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties aggregated to Rs. 546.939 million out of which financing amounting to Rs. 292.887
million were rolled over. Moreover, during the period, an amount of Rs. 72.416 million was receivable from H.M. Esmail & Co.
Limited, New Delite Company Limited, ARY Services (Private) Limited and Madina Electronics, related parties in respect of markup
accrued which was converted into finance facility. However, we have not been able to ascertain the classification and provisioning
of financing portfolio on the basis of time-based criteria as required by Regulation 25 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 as the financing facilities are being renewed and rolled over at the maturity dates and, accordingly, the
related impact of income recognized during the year on such financing could not be ascertained.

2. The Group has not performed subjective evaluation of its financing portfolio as required under Regulation 25 of Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and has not carried out impairment review as required by International Accounting
Standard 39 - Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement despite presence of impairment indicators in the portfolio. The
Group has not recorded any provision for impairment based on subjective evaluation of the borrowers. Accordingly, we are unable
to confirm the valuation and recoverability of short term financing in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to;

1. Note 1.3 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group which inter-alia states that the license of the holding company to carry
out the investment finance services as a Non-Banking Finance Company is valid till May 29, 2019.
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2. Note 13.1 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group which provides details regarding non-compliance with the Regulation
19(h), Regulation 17(1), Regulation 17(2), Regulation 18A and Regulation 23 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008.

3. Note 8.1 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group which inter-alia states that during the year, the Group has purchased
property from M/s ARY Communications Limited vide Agreement to Sell entered into with M/s ARY Communications Limited dated
December 26, 2018, the title of which is in the process of being transferred into the name of the Group.

4. Note 1.6 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group which inter-alia states that the shares of PSX and PMEX card have
not yet been transferred in the name of the Group due to the reason that the subsidiary company has not obtained license to deal as
broker from SECP till balance sheet date.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017, were audited by another firm of Chartered
accountants who had expressed an unqualified opinion thereon vide their report dated March 24, 2018.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.NO

Key audit matter(s)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Control environment relating to the financial reporting process and related IT systems

The IT control environment relating to the financial reporting
process and the application controls of individual IT systems
have an impact on the selected audit approach.

As the consolidated financial statements are based on extensive
number of data flows from IT systems, consequently the
financial reporting control environment is determined as a
key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included evaluation of the financial
reporting process and related control environment, as well as
testing of the effectiveness of controls including general IT
controls. Our audit procedures focused on testing the
reconciliation and approval controls as well as on evaluating
the administration of access rights.

Our audit procedures extensively consisted of several
substantive procedures as well as data analysis relating to the
most significant balances on the profit and loss account and
statement of financial position.

Valuation of investments

The Group's investment comprises investments in equity and
debt instruments. As at December 31, 2018 total net investment
amount to Rs. 62.714 million.

The valuation of these investments is made using different
valuation techniques as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's accounting policy and movement in the year in
the investments balances are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of investments were addressed by applying following
procedures:

- Evaluated the design and implementation of key control
around investments;

- Re-performed valuation to assess that investments are
carried as per the valuation methodology specified in
the accounting policies;
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‘We have considered this as a key audit matter in view of the - Performed purchases and sales testing on sample basis
significance of these investments in relation to the total assets of trades made during the year and checked that
of the Group. transaction were recorded in the correct period as part
of investment in case of purchases.

- Checked the existence of the securities from the Central
Depository Company's report;

- We also reviewed management's assessment of whether
there are any indicators of impairment including those
securities that are not actively traded; and

- Furthermore, we also assessed the adequacy of the
respective disclosure relating to investments as disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements.

3. Financing to related parties

As disclosed in note 11 and 13 of the consolidated financial Our audit procedures include the following:

statements, as at December 31, 2018, short term and long-

term financing to related parties aggregated to Rs. 546.939 - Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of design and

million. Financing made to related parties is 99% of total implementation of key controls related to the credit

financing of the holding company and represents 67% of total approval process, post approval credit management,

assets and 71% of total equity of the holding company. loan grading system, collateral monitoring and loan
impairment assessment.

Further, the assessment of provision of non-performing finances

provided to related parties involves significant judgement and - Adopted a risk based sampling approach and checked

use of management assumption both subjectively and the customers' repayment behavior and evaluated the

objectively. The identification of provision and the Group's loan classification taking into consideration

determination of the recoverable amount involve various the credit committee reports, customers' financial

assumption and factor including the financial conditions of information collateral valuation report and other

the counter party, timing and amount of expected future cash available information.

flows including the forced sales value (FSV) benefits on the

securities pledged. - Assessed the adequacy of the provision for loan losses
by testing the key assumptions and calculations for

Due to the significance of transactions involving related parties loss allowance calculation as required by NBFC

and the factors detailed above, we have considered the Regulations, 2008 and management's assumption.

financing to related parties as a key audit matter.

- Assessed the adequacy of the respective disclosures
relating to loan and finances stated in the consolidated
financial statements.

4. Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group is in highly regulated industry and is governed by
stringent laws and regulations which mainly include Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, various circulars issued
by the SECP from time to time to regulate the business of the
Group. The Group is required to comply with these rules and
regulations.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included the
following:

- Obtained an understanding of the relevant legal and
regulatory framework within which the Company
operates and assessed the design and operation of its
key controls over this framework.
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S.NO | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit

We have considered compliance with laws and regulation as _ Discussed the applicable policies and procedures with
a key audit matter since failure to comply with any of these senior management and reviewed Board papers, and
applicable laws and regulations could have a material financial internal audit reports for any recorded instances of
impact on the business of the Group. potential non-compliance, and maintained a high level
of vigilance when carrying out our other audit
procedures for indications of non-compliance.
- Reviewed the Company's documentation and

correspondence with the regulators.

4. First time application of Third and Fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Third and Fourth Schedules to the Companies
Act, 2017 became applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Group's annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The Companies Act, 2017 (including third and fourth
schedules) forms an integral part of the statutory financial
reporting framework as applicable to the Group and amongst
others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in
relation to various elements of the consolidated financial
statements.

As part of this transition to the requirements of the said Third
and Fourth schedules, the management made certain
amendments in disclosures required in the Group's consolidated

Our audit procedures include the following:

- Considered the management's process to identify the
necessary amendments required in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

- Evaluated the results of management's analysis and
key decisions taken in respect of the transition, using
our knowledge of the relevant requirements of the
Third and Fourth Schedules to the Companies Act,
2017 and our understanding of the Group's operations
and business.

- Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
additional disclosures and changes to the previous
disclosures made in the annexed Group's consolidated

financial statements. financial statements based on the new requirements.
We consider it as a key audit matter in view of the extensive
impacts in the consolidated financial statements due to the
Companies Act, 2017.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and its Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Group.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Group regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion, except for adjustment in respect of matter stated in basis for qualified opinion
section above:
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a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Group as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Group's business; and

d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Raheel Shahnawaz.

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Karachi CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2018 2017
Note -------------- Rupees--------------
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 8 40,036,715 9,342,555
Intangible assets 9 7,500,000 7,500,000
Investment in shares of PSX 10 21,752,072 35,906,147
Long term financing 11 3,878,461 12,942,646
Long term advances 12 2,500,000 2,500,000
Deferred tax asset - net 23 - 8,599,833
75,667,248 76,791,181
CURRENT ASSETS
Short term financing 13 555,761,938 (| 414,827,758
Short term investments 14 62,714,036 5,836,219
Loans and advances 15 6,320,724 1,845,443
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 4,018,373 10,541,924
Accrued interest 17 2,658,841 41,139,793
Tax refund due from Government 18 79,523,527 84,536,575
Cash and bank balances 19 19,663,073 34,841,922
730,660,512 593,569,634
TOTAL ASSETS 806,327,760 670,360,815
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2017: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 20 514,335,580 || 514,335,580
Statutory reserves 21 162,897,175 || 159,452,163
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of 'available for sale' investments
investments to fair value - net 3,965,468 18,406,709
Accumulated losses (80,882,642)| (94,427,968)
600,315,581 597,766,484
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subordinated loan 22 180,000,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities - net 23 2,552,146 -
182,552,146 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings 24 2,759,096 37,398,225
Short term deposits 25 - 7,700,000
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued and other liabilities 26 18,606,354 || 25,401,523
23,460,033 72,594,331
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 806,327,760 670,360,815
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

SHAKEEL AHMED
CFO

ZAFAR M. SHEIKH
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

BANK LTD.

2018 2017
Note  ----—--—-—-- Rupees----------
Income
Income on financing and placements 28 | 67,371,883 51,012,119
Return on securities 29 | 1,868,414 1,044,534
Loss on sale of investments - (1,774)
Profit on deposit with banks 1,790,784 693,238
Other income 30 | 2,460,627 5,524,037
73,491,708 58,272,154
Expenditure
Financial charges 31 | 8,693,098 3,122,524
Administrative expenses 32 | 31,061,404 35,251,432
39,754,502 38,373,956
Operating profit before taxation 33,737,206 19,898,198
Gain on disposal of 'available for sale' investments - 51,614,948
Profit before taxation 33,737,206 71,513,146
Taxation
Current (5,594,889) (3,512,930)
Deferred (11,151,979) (9,516,269)
33 (16,746,868) (13,029,199)
Net profit after tax 16,990,338 58,483,947
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 34 0.330 1.137
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
---------- Rupees----------
Net profit after tax 16,990,338 58,483,947
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income
Deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax (14,441,241)  (8,956,537)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,549,097 49,527,410
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATMENT

2018 2017
---------- Rupees----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 33,737,206 71,513,146
Adjustment for non cash and other items
Depreciation 1,784,315 1,831,778
Gain on disposal of shares - (1,748,226)
Loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets 42,406 (212,287)
Realized gain on remeasurement of PSX shares - (51,614,948)
1,826,721  (51,743,683)
Cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes 35,563,927 19,769,463
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Financing and placements (140,934,180)] [(122,770,622)
Loans and advances (4,475,281) 608,158
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 6,523,551 (1,837,288)
Accrued interest 38,480,952 8,302,912
(100,404,958) (115,696,840)
(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities
Short term deposits (7,700,000) -
Short term borrowings (34,639,129)| | 37,398,225
Accrued and other liabilities (6,795,169)| | (1,040,231)
(49,134,298) 36,357,994
Net change in operating assets and liabilities (149,539,256) (79,338,846)
Income tax paid (581,841) (500,967)
Net cash used in operating activities (114,557,170)  (60,070,350)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed assets - net (32,520,881) (263,343)
Investment in quoted shares (32,164,983) -
Investment in Government securities (25,000,000) -
Sale of investments (shares) - 1,607,374
Sale of PSX shares - 67,324,040
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (89,685,804) 68,668,071
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing 9,064,185 4,823,544
Subordinated loans 180,000,000 -
Net cash generated from financing activities 189,064,185 4,823,544
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (15,178,849) 13,421,265
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 34,841,922 21,420,657
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19,663,073 34,841,922

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE

HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at January 01, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017
Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Statutory reserve

Balance as at December 31, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Statutory reserve

Balance as at December 31, 2018

Reserves Unrealized gain
Issued, / (loss) on
subscribed remeasurement Total
and paidup Statutory Accumulated of available for
capital reserve losses sale investment
to fair value
Rupees
514,335,580 147,316,381 (140,776,133) 78,978,194 599,854,022
- - 58,483,947 (60,571,485)  (2,087,538)
- - 58,483,947 (60,571,485)  (2,087,538)
- 12,135,782  (12,135,782) - -
- 12,135,782 46,348,165 (60,571,485)  (2,087,538)
514,335,580 159,452,163  (94,427,968) 18,406,709 597,766,484
- - 16,990,338 - 16,990,338
- - - (14,441,241) (14,441,241)
- - 16,990,338 (14,441,241) 2,549,097
- 3,445,012 (3,445,012) - -
- 3,445,012 13,545,326 (14,441,241) 2,549,097

514,335,580 162,897,175  (80,882,642) 3,965,468 600,315,581

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SHAKEEL AHMED
CFO

ZAFAR M. SHEIKH
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

3.1

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The "Group" consist of Security Investment Bank Limited (the Holding Company) and Security & Capital Investment (Private)
Limited (the subsidiary company).

Security Investment Bank Limited (the Holding Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Holding Company was incorporated in Pakistan on May 23, 1991
and started its commercial operations on December 31, 1991. Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Holding Company is licensed to carry out business of investment finance services as a Non-Banking Finance Company
(NBFC) under section 282C of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) as amended through SRO 1002 (I) /2015 dated October 15, 2015 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations 2008 as amended through SRO 1160(I) / 2015 dated November 25, 2015 (previously this was covered under
SRO 585(1)/87 dated July 13, 1987, issued by the Ministry of Finance). The license is valid until May 29, 2019.

The Holding Company is in the process of getting its credit rating renewed. Previously, JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
has placed the rating of the Holding Company for medium to long-term rating at 'BBB'+ (Triple B plus) and the short-term rating
at 'A-2' (A two) on 'Rating Watch Developing' status.

Security Capital & Investments (Private) Limited (the subsidiary company) is a private company limited by shares incorporated
in Pakistan on February 23, 2015 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 . The registered office of the Company is situated
at Karachi in the province of Sindh.

In the year 2016, the Holding Company made an investment in newly incorporated wholly owned subsidiary company namely
Security Capital & Investment (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 50 million. As per the agreement dated September 07, 2016
between the Company and the subsidiary, the Holding Company ceded the legal right on Trading Right Entitlement Certificate
(TREC) and 1,602,953 shares of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and Pakistan Mercantile Exchange (PMEX)
membership card to the subsidiary. During the year 2017, the TREC has been transferred by the Holding Company in the name
of the subsidiary. However, title of shares of PSX and PMEX card has not yet been transferred in the name of the subsidiary due
to the reason that the subsidiary has not obtained license to deal as broker from SECP till the date of statement of financial position.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Flat No. 4, 3rd Floor, Al-Baber Centre, Main Markaz, F-8, Islamabad.
The Holding Company has a regional office at Suite no. 502, 5th Floor, Madina City Mall, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar Karachi.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date control commences.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carrying value of investment held by
the Holding Company is eliminated against the Holding Company’s share in paid up capital of the subsidiaries. The accounting
policies used by the subsidiary companies in preparation of their financial statements are consistent with that of the Holding
Company. Where policies are different, necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of that subsidiary to bring

their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group.

All material inter-group balances, transactions and resulting unrealized profits / losses are eliminated.
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Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan.

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS
Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and directives issued by SECP. Where provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules,
the NBFC Regulations and directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and directives issued by SECP have been followed.

The third and fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Group for the first time for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its third and fourth schedules) forms an integral
part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group. Specific additional disclosures and changes to the
existing disclosures have been included in these consolidated financial statements.

The SECP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standards, IAS-39, ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ through Circular No. 19 dated August 13, 2003 to NBFCs providing investment finance services, discounting
services and housing finance services. The SECP has also deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard,
IFRS-7, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ through Circular No. 411(I)/2008 dated April 28, 2008 to NBFCs providing investment
finance services, discounting services and housing finance services. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not
been considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Group and rounded to the nearest Rupee.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

Amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Group

The Group has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became
effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the interaction of
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Reissue to incorporate a hedge

accounting chapter and permit the early application of the

requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income the

'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities designated

under the fair value option without early applying the other January 01, 2018
requirements of IFRS 9

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment,
general hedge accounting and derecognition January 01, 2018
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the

sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its

associate or joint venture Immediately
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments

regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor

and its associate or joint venture Immediately
IAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments to clarify transfers or

property to, or from, investment property January 01, 2018
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Amendments to clarify the classification

and measurement of share-based payment transactions January 01, 2018

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements made to IFRS
that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard January 01, 2018

IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures January 01, 2018

Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standard:

Conceptual framework for Financial reporting 2018 - Original Issue March 2018

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply the
hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value hedge
of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of
financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied,
and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet

the 'own use' scope exception July 01, 2018
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures - Additional hedge

accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting

from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9 July 01, 2018
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding prepayment

features with negative compensation and modifications of

financial liabilities January 01, 2019
IAS 19 Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan amendments,

curtailments or settlements January 01, 2019
IFRS 3 Business Combinations Amendments to clarify the definition of a

business January 1, 2020
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures January 01, 2019

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against respective standards:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2015 — 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have been adopted
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard:

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments July 01, 2018

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which
have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1  First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The effects of IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers, IFRS 16 - Leases and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments are still
being assessed, as these new standards may have a significant effect on the Company’s future financial statements.

The Group expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will not have any material
impact and therefore will not affect the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates, underlying assumptions and judgments
are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

(a) determining the residual values and useful lives of property and equipment (Note 7.1)
(b) classification of investments (Note 7.4 and 7.5)

(c) recognition of taxation and deferred tax (Note 7.17) and

(d) accounting for post employment benefits (Note 7.8)
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BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for held for trading and
available for sale investments which are carried at fair value. In these consolidated financial statements, except for the amount
reflected in consolidated cash flow statements, all the transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method in accordance with the rate specified in note
8 to these consolidated financial statements, whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. Full month's
depreciation is charged on additions during the month in which asset is acquired, while no depreciation is charged in the month
of disposal.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at each statement of financial position date.
Minor renewals or replacements, maintenance, repairs and profit or loss on disposal of fixed assets are included in current year's
income. Major renewals and repairs are capitalized.

Fully depreciated assets are being kept at written down value of Rs. 1/- each.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Trading rights and membership card

These are stated at cost less impairments, if any. The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether
these are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts, and where carrying value is in excess of recoverable amount, these
are written down to their estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If such indications exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Investments

Held-to-maturity

Investment with fixed maturity where management has both the intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-to-
maturity.

Available-for-sale

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
to interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale.

Held-for-trading

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in price or dealer's
margin are classified as held-for-trading.
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Recognition and measurement

All investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments available for sale and investments held for trading for which active market exists,
are measured at market value using rates quoted on stock exchange quotes and broker's quotations. In case of available for sale
investments, any difference between the carrying value and the revalued amount is taken to surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of
investments account, until realized on disposal through consolidated statement of comprehensive income. At the time of disposal

the respective surplus or deficit is transferred to income currently. Amortization cost is charged to profit and loss account.

Investments held till maturity are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment, if any. The
amortization for the period has been charged to the profit and loss account.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. This
objective evidence of impairment of fixed income securities is determined in accordance with provisioning criteria for non
performing exposures as per the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012.

Securities under repurchase / reverse repurchase agreement

Transactions of repurchase / resale of government securities, term finance certificates and shares are entered into at contracted
rates for specified period of time and are accounted for as follows:

Repurchase agreements

The securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be recognized
in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investments. Amounts received under these
agreements are included in borrowings from institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up
on borrowings from institutions and accrued as expense over the life of the repo agreement.

Reverse repurchase agreements

The securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repo) are not recognized
in the balance sheet. Amounts paid under these obligations are included in placements. The difference between purchase and resale
price is accrued as income over the life of the reverse repo agreement.

Trade date and settlement date accounting

All "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset is
delivered to or by the Group. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are those, the contract for which requires delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates an approved Provident Fund Scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Holding Company and the employee, to the fund @10% of basic salary.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legally

enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is
taken to income currently.

Classification of deposits and financing

Deposits and financing are classified as long and short term considering the remaining period at the balance sheet date.

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at bank are carried at nominal amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand, cash with banks in current and deposit account and short term clean placement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue

Income on financing, placement, government securities, profit on deposits and term finance certificates are generally recognized
on time proportion basis taking into account the principal / net investment outstanding and applicable rates of profit / return
thereon. Income on discounted commercial papers is recognized on a time proportion basis over the life of instruments. Where
recovery is considered doubtful, income is recognized on receipt basis.

Dividends on equity investments are recognized as income when the right to receive payment is established.

Income from capital gains is recognized on earned basis.

Fee, commission, liquidated damages etc. are recorded on earned basis except which is spread over the time proportion.

Finance cost

Finance cost includes return on deposits and borrowings which are recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account
the relevant issue date and final maturity date.

Taxation

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates ( and tax laws ) that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments is charged or credited directly to the same account.

7.18 Related party transactions
All transactions with the related parties are priced on arm’s length basis.

7.19 Provision for doubtful debts on financing
The Group reviews its doubtful debts at each reporting date to assess whether provision / (income suspension) should be recorded
in the consolidated profit and loss account in addition to the mandatory provision / (income suspension) required in accordance
with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In particular,
calculating the provision for doubtful debts on financing is subject to numerous judgments, estimates and timing of future cash
flows. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the provisions.

7.20 Dividend distributions and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations other than statutory appropriations are recorded in the period in which they are approved.

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:
. Furniture |Computer and . Telephone
Description Note Building and fixtures | Equipments Vehicles | Generator System Total
Rupees)

Year ended December 31, 2018

Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) - 6,483,079 1,491,850 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,342,556
Additions (at cost) 8.1 32,000,000 254,980 338,400 - - 10,000 32,603,380
Disposals (NBV) - 4) (60,831) (32,918) - (31,153) (124,906)
Depreciation charge (53,334) (881,656) (601,581)  (196,721)  (23,301) (27,722) (1,784,315)
Closing net book value 31,946,666 5,856,399 1,167,838 837,833 73,728 154,251 40,036,715

Gross carrying value basis
Cost 32,000,000 8,969,102 3,639,330 940,501 582,736 253,969 46,385,638
Accumulated depreciation (53,334) (3,112,703) (2,471,492)  (102,668) (509,008) (99,718)  (6,348,923)
Net book value 31,946,666 5,856,399 1,167,838 837,833 73,728 154,251 40,036,715

Year ended December 31, 2017

Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) - 6,891,513 1,659,442 1,774,890 155,304 217,555 10,698,704
Additions (at cost) - 442,384 417,534 987,525 - 12,400 1,859,843
Disposals (NBV) - - (2,513) (1,381,700) - - (1,384,213)
Depreciation charge - (850,818) (582,613) (313,243)  (58,275) (26,829) (1,831,778)
Closing net book value - 6,483,079 1,491,850 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,342,555

Gross carrying value basis
Cost - 8,764,122 3,428,050 987,526 582,736 302,382 14,064,816
Accumulated depreciation - (2,281,043) (1,936,200) 79,946  (485,707) (99,256) (4,722,260)
Net book value - 6,483,079 1,491,850 1,067,472 97,029 203,126 9,342,555

Depreciation rate % per annum 2 10 20 20 10 10
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8.1 During the year, the Group purchased from M/s ARY Communications Limited office no. 502, 503 and 504 with total covered
area of 3756.19 square feet situated at Sth floor, Madina City Mall, plot no. 27, sheet no. SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar,
Karachi vide Agreement to Sell entered into with M/s ARY Communications Limited dated December 26, 2018. The title of the
said property acquired is in the process of being transferred into the name of the Group.

8.2 Cost and accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year include an amount of Rs. 1,224,988/- (2017 : Rs. 538,973/-) in respect
of fully depreciated assets still in use.
8.3 Schedule of disposal of fixed assets
. Cost ccumulated| ‘Written Sale |Capital gain| Mode of
Particulars down | proceeds | / (loss) disposal Sold to Address
(Rup
Furniture - Islamabad office 50,000 49,996 4 50,000 49,996  Negotiation  Javed Advocate  Office no. 55, Blue area, Islamabad
Vehicle- Bike 47,025 14,107 32,918 13,000 (19.918)  Negotiation Bilawal House no. 123, Sher Muhammad street 1, DHA Phase 5, Karachi
Office Equipment - Batteries 127,120 66,289 60,831 12,500 (48,331)  Negotiation ~ Zakir Mehmood House no. 102 Jamshaid Road, Karachi
Telephone - Ipad 58,413 27,260 31,153 7,000 (24,153)  Negotiation Saima Room No. 17 Lakhani Centre, Gulistan e Jauhar, Karachi

282,558 157,652 124,906 82,500 (42,406)

2018 2017
Note ---—---—--—- Rupees ------------
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Corporate membership of the PMEX 2,500,000 2,500,000
TREC of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 5,000,000 5,000,000
7,500,000 7,500,000
10 INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF PSX

Available for sale

Cost 17,499,438 17,499,438

Unrealised gain 4,252,634 18,406,709
10.1 21,752,072 35,906,147

10.1 This represents 1,602,953 (December 31, 2017: 1,602,953) shares of PSX at fair value of Rs. 13.57/- (December 31, 2017: Rs.
22.40/- per share) per share.

1 LONG TERM FINANCING

Murabaha Financing
Secured and considered good
Murabaha finance

Associated companies 13.1 7,659,053 21,135,840
Others 6,001,732 6,719,717
Less: Deferred Murabaha income (959,291) (2,260,448)
Murabaha receivable 1.1 12,701,494 25,595,109
Less: Current maturity (8,823,033) (12,652,463)

3,878,461 12,942,646

111 These represent financing of vehicle on murabaha basis against hypothecation of vehicles and machinery for a period of 3 years
to 5 years, carrying mark up at 1 Year KIBOR + 3% per annum (2017: 1 Year KIBOR+3%).
12 LONG TERM ADVANCE
For office premises 12.1 2,500,000 2,500,000
12.1

This amount represents advance paid for office space in National Commodity Exchange Limited Building (NCEL) in the year
2003-04 and 2004-05. The said building is still under construction.
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2018 2017
SHORT TERM FINANCING Note  ------mooev Rupees ----------o-
Secured and considered good
- Associated companies 546,938,905 371,340,338
- Others - 30,834,957
Current maturity under murabaha finance 8,823,033 12,652,463

13.1 & 13.2 555,761,938 414,827,758

Non-compliance with Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations)

Regulation 19(h) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations) states that an
NBFC shall not provide finance to its major shareholders, chief executive, directors, key executives firms or companies in which
it or any of its chief executive, directors, key executives, or their close relatives are interested as a partner, director, guarantor or
major shareholder. However, the Holding Company has primarily provided financing facilities to its related parties.

During the year 2016, in response to amendments in the Regulations as to restriction imposed on financing made to related parties
as stated in regulation 19(h), the Holding Company vide letter dated February 4, 2016 requested Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) to grant relaxation from regulation 19(h). The Commission vide its letter dated February
17, 2016 refused the relaxation and directed the Holding Company to comply with the amended Regulations within stipulated
time period of six months. The Holding Company vide letter dated April 18, 2016 again requested for the relaxation which was
not responded by the Commission.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Holding Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed
the Holding Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 19(h) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
TW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Holding Company
to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Holding Company. The Holding Company
in response to the said letter has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Holding Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Holding
Company vide its letter dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of first quarterly settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-II/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Holding Company vide
its letter dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing
in compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 17(1) of the Regulations states that the total outstanding Exposure (fund based and non-fund based) by an NBFC to
a person shall not at any time exceed 20% of the equity of an NBFC (as disclosed in the latest financial statements), provided
that the maximum outstanding fund-based Exposure does not exceed 15% of the equity of an NBFC. However, as at December
31, 2018, the Holding Company has breached the fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited
and New Delite Company Limited by 15.07% and 1.01% respectively and has breached the fund based and non-fund based
exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited by 10.07%.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Holding Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed
the Holding Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 17(1) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Holding Company
to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Holding Company. The Holding Company

in response to the said letter has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Holding Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Holding
Company vide its letter dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of first quarterly settlement of financing.
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Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-1I/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Holding Company vide
its letter dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing
in compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 17(2) of the Regulations states that the total outstanding Exposure (fund based and non-fund based) by an NBFC to
any group shall not exceed twenty-five per cent (25) of the equity of an NBFC (as disclosed in the latest financial statements),
provided that the maximum outstanding fund-based Exposure does not exceed twenty per cent (20) of the equity of an NBFC.
However, as at December 31, 2018, the Holding Company has breached the fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M.
Esmail & Company Limited, New Delite Company Limited and ARY Services (Private) Limited by 41.59% and fund based and
non-fund based exposure by 43.53% with respect to these companies.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Holding Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed
the Holding Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 17(2) of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Holding Company
to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Holding Company. The Holding Company
in response to the said letter has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Holding Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Holding
Company vide its letter dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of first quarterly settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-1I/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Holding Company vide
its letter dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing
in compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 18A of the Regulations states that an NBFC may provide secured Finance up to Rs. 200,000/~ (Rupees two hundred
thousand only) to a single borrower. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Holding Company has extended secured financing
to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited, New Delite Company Limited and ARY Services (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 161.529
million, Rs. 59.253 million and Rs. 76.163 million respectively.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Holding Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed
the Holding Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 18A of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Holding Company
to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Holding Company. The Holding Company
in response to the said letter has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Holding Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Holding
Company vide its letter dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of first quarterly settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-1I/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Holding Company vide
its letter dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing
in compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

Regulation 23 of the Regulations states that an NBFC while taking an Exposure shall not provide finance if the total Exposure
availed by the Borrower from financial institutions exceeds 10 times the Equity of the Borrower as disclosed in the financial
statements of the Borrower, provided that the fund-based Exposure of a Borrower shall not exceed 4 times of its equity as disclosed
in the Borrower’s latest financial statements. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Holding Company has breached the fund
based and fund/non-fund based exposure limits with respect to H.M. Esmail & Company Limited. Further, the Holding Company
has breached the fund based exposure limits with respect to New Delite Company Limited and Madina Electronics by 1.36 and
277.39 times, respectively, and has breached the fund/non-fund based respect to New Delite Company Limited and Madina
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Electronics by 1.64 and 632.13 times, respectively. Moreover, the equity of related party ARY Services (Private) Limited based
on its financial statements as at December 31, 2018 is negative Rs. 227.20 million. However, Holding Company has provided
finance facilities as at December 31, 2018 to ARY Services (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 100 million.

During the year, the Commission issued onsite inspection orders vide letter number SCD/S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/305 dated April
24,2018 in respect of inspection of the Holding Company and its business. The Commission carried out the inspection and directed
the Holding Company to provide comments on violation of above stated Regulation 23 of the Regulations vide letter SCD/S&ED-
IW/SIBL/2018/324, dated July 02, 2018.

Furthermore, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED-IW/SIBL/2018/29 dated August 20, 2018 instructed the Holding Company
to provide detailed plan/schedule of repayments against all financing extended by the Holding Company. The Holding Company
in response to the said letter has submitted the required repayment plan/schedule vide its letter dated September 3, 2018.

The Holding Company has settled first quarterly repayment as per repayment plan/schedule shared with SECP. The Holding
Company vide its letter dated January 8, 2019 has intimated SECP in respect of first quarterly settlement of financing.

Moreover, in addition to report dated July 2, 2018, SECP vide its letter No. SCD-S&ED/OW-11/SIBL/Khi/2018/26 dated October
17, 2018 highlighted specific observations which requires immediate attention. In response to this, the Holding Company vide
its letter dated October 30, 2018 gave assurance to SECP that management is using all the best possible efforts to settle all financing
in compliance with the Regulations with reference to the undertaking already submitted dated July 30, 2018.

13.1.6  Regulation 19(g) of the Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 states that an NBFC shall not
hold shares on aggregate basis, whether as pledgee, or absolute owner, of an amount exceeding 15% of the paid-up share capital
of that company or 15% of its own equity, whichever is less. However, as at December 31, 2018, the Holding Company has
breached exposure limit with respect to Lucky Cement Limited by 2.30% of its own equity.

13.2 These are secured by way of hypothecation or a charge on assets of customers, pledge of certificates of deposits and pledge of
listed shares. The mark-up rates are 13% per annum (2017: 12%).

2018 2017
14 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note  ——mommmmmeee T T S
Held to maturity
Market Treasury Bills 25,000,000 -
Available for sale
Term Finance Certificates 14.1 5,836,219 5,836,219
Investment in equity shares 142 31,877,817 -

62,714,036 5,836,219

14.1 Particulars of listed Term Finance Certificates (TFC) :

2018 2017
No. of Certificates Cost Market Cost Market
Issuer of TFC o8 Value s value
2018 2017 L e —
Telecard Limited 14.1.1 5,000 5,000 7,781,625 5,836,219 7,781,625 5,836,219
14.1.1  Terms of redemption of listed TFCs are as follows:
Particulars Certificates Profit rate per annum Profit Redemption terms
Telecard Limited 5,000 3.75% over 6 months Semi-annually Originally ~Eight years
from May 2005. Then
Valuation of certificates 5,000 rescheduled up to May 27,
Redemption up to December 31, 2018 3,467 2015.  Now it s
Balance as at December 31, 2018 1,533 restructured to be

redeemable over the period
of 5 years with 2 years
grace period carrying
mark up @ 3 months
KIBOR+0%.
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Telecard Limited has restructured its TFCs redemption schedule on December 30, 2011 relating to the default of payment of
redemption due on May 27, 2011, without any consequences or delay penalties after the approval obtained by the Company from
the TFC holders upon Company's request. The said restructuring has resulted in lower current maturity. As a result, the last
redemption date has been extended to May 27, 2015, instead of the revised final redemption date of November 27, 2013. In the
year 2015 it is restructured to be redeemable over the period of 5 years with 2 years grace period carrying mark up @ 3 months
KIBOR + 0%.

The TFCs are secured against a first specific charge over the fixed assets of the Company, aggregating to Rs. 800 million and
specific charge over the intangible assets (frequency spectrum) procured from the Pakistan Telecommunication Authority.

Quoted Shares

All shares have face value of Rs. 10/- each unless identified otherwise.

2018 2017 2018 2017
No. of ordinary shares Cost Market Cost Market
Value Value
Rupees
Cement
1,747 - Lucky Cement Limited 1,204,766 759,368 - -
Bank
344,118 - Bank Al Habib Limited 23,506,701 23,671,877 - -
Power
86,800 - The Hub Power Company Limited 7,453,516 7,446,572 - -
432,665 - 32,164,983 31,877,817 - -
2018 2017
LOANS AND ADVANCES Note  -----ooe Rupees----------

Advances - considered good
For expenses 6,320,724 1,845,443

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposits 361,280 1,526,880
PMEX exposure limits - 1,212,927
KSE exposure limits - 1,250,000
Prepayments 995,396 910,386
Other receivables - considered good 2,661,697 5,641,731

4,018,373 10,541,924

ACCRUED INTEREST

Considered good
Income receivable 17.1 2,658,841 41,139,793

This represents income on financing and government securities not matured / due on December 31, 2018.

TAX REFUND DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Advance tax 269,031,727 268,449,886
Less: Provisions for taxation (189,508,200) (183,913,311)
79,523,527 84,536,575
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2018 2017
Note  ------------ Rupees------------
19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With State Bank of Pakistan in current account 11,257 29,935
With other banks in
Current accounts 2,196,079 2,111,201
Deposit accounts 19.1 17,431,673 32,684,355
19,627,752 34,795,556
Cash in hand 24,064 16,431
19,663,073 34,841,922
19.1 Rate of return on these deposits accounts range from 5% to 6% per annum (2017: 3% to 4% per annum).
20 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Number of shares

2018 2017
23,552,000 23,552,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid in cash 235,520,000 235,520,000
27,881,558 27,881,558 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each issued as fully paid bonus 278,815,580 278,815,580
51,433,558 51,433,558 514,335,580 514,335,580
21 STATUTORY RESERVES
Statutory reserves 21.1 162,897,175 159,452,163
21.1 This reserve is created by Holding Company at the rate of 20% of profit for the year from ordinary activities after taxation as

per management discretion. However, in prior periods, this reserve was created in compliance with Regulation No. 16 of Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008, as this was mandatory to be created by a deposit taking
NBFC. The Holding Company has ceased to be a deposit taking NBFC in 2016.

2018 2017
Note --------—-—--- Rupees------------
22 SUBORDINATED LOAN
Secured
Subordinated loan 22.1 180,000,000 -
22.1 This subordinated loan is raised by the Holding Company from Sponsors Directors. The loan is granted for a terms of three years,

commencing from date of the said agreement dated April 10, 2018. The interest rate implicit in the agreement is six month KIBOR,
which is ratified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) via letter no. SC/NBFC/SIBL/42/2018/233
dated September 17, 2018. The principal amount and interest thereon will be repayable at the maturity of the loan i.e. April 10,
2021.

In accordance with the requirement of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 and Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (vide SRO No. 1002(I)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 and
SRO No. 1160(1)/2015 dated November 25, 2015), the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has instructed existing
NBFCs to meet with Minimum Capital requirement of Rs.750 million to raise deposits. In order to avail the license of deposit
taking NBFC, during the year, the Holding Company has raised subordinated loan of Rs. 180 million from related parties under
Clause xix of Rule 2 of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003.
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 2018 2017
Note  ---------mm- Rupees------------
Deferred tax liability / (asset) arising in respect of:
Accelerated depreciation 2,635,424 543,051
Unrealized gain on revaluation of securities (83,278) -
Tax losses - (9,142,884)

2,552,146 (8,599,833)

Movement in deferred tax

Opening balance (8,599,833) (18,116,102)
Charge during the year 11,151,979 9,516,269
Closing balance 2,552,146 (8,599,833)

The Holding Company has an aggregate amount of Rs. nil (2017: Rs. 0.543 million) in respect of unabsorbed tax losses as at
December 31, 2018 on which the management has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs. nil (2017: Rs. 8.599 million).

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Short term running finance 24.1 2,759,096 37,398,225

The Holding Company has availed running finance facility from Summit Bank with a limit of Rs. 50 million @ 3 months KIBOR
plus 4%. The facility is secured against Rs. 58 million book debts of the Holding Company.

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Others 25.1 - 7,700,000

During the year, SECP has conducted an inspection of the Holding Company and pointed out that the Holding Company is no
more a deposit taking NBFC as the Holding Company do not meet minimum capital requirement of Rs. 750 million to raise
deposits as per schedule I of Regulation No. 4 of Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.
Therefore, it is required to encash all the existing certificates of investments (COI's) issued previously.

In the year 2008, the Holding Company had issued certificate of investments (COIs) amounting to Rs. 7.70 million to Faisalabad
Electric Supply Company Limited (FESCO) on behalf of New Delite Company (Private) Limited. During the year, the Holding
Company has repaid the same along with interest amounting to Rs. 7.87 million to New Delite Company (Private) Limited against
the indemnity bond.

2018 2017
ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note  --mneomee Rupees-----------
Accrued interest
Subordinated loan 7,429,663 -
Return on deposits from others - 170,877
7,429,663 170,877
Other liabilities
Others
related party 9,679,022 || 21,718,314
others 1,497,669 3,512,332

11,176,691 25,230,646
18,606,354 25,401,523
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27.1

27.2

28

29

30

31

32

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Guarantees issued on behalf of customer:
- Associated undertaking

Commitments

There were no commitment as at the balance sheet date.

INCOME ON FINANCING AND PLACEMENTS

Financing
Demand finance
Murabaha finance
Lease finance

Placements

With financial institution

RETURN ON SECURITIES

Return on Government securities
Return on term finance certificates (TFCs)
Dividend income

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of fixed assets
Commission

Processing income
Miscellaneous

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on subordinate loan

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contribution to provident fund

Rent, rates and taxes

Telephone, telex and fax

Electricity, water and gas

Printing, postage and stationery
Insurance

Fees and membership

Brokerage and commission

Central Depository Company charges

27,&¢mual Report
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2018 2017

------------ Rupees------------
55,103,000 64,203,000
64,858,461 || 48,166,257
1,473,136 1,482,070
675,327 1,281,054
67,006,924 50,929,381
364,959 82,738
67,371,883 51,012,119

931,145 -
487,770 475,500
449,499 569,034
1,868,414 1,044,534
49,996 212,287
510,737 686,136
493,739 2,012,732
1,406,155 2,612,882
2,460,627 5,524,037
1,148,635 3,122,524

7,544,463 -
8,693,098 3,122,524
17,347,247 19,088,884
35 398,049 445,572
2,194,662 2,299,220
669,749 772,013
717,246 766,085
484,826 512,807
276,433 542,187
1,622,525 2,899,353
- 441,795
600,632 679,990
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2018 2017
------------ Rupees------------
Auditors' remuneration 321 547,780 497,870
Legal and professional fees 1,173,162 1,291,215
Vehicle running and maintenance 887,128 743,274
Repairs and maintenance 638,384 448,153
Advertisement 238,990 413,204
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 918,589 1,140,109
Depreciation 8 1,784,315 1,831,778
Bank charges 53,899 6,924
Old age benefit 96,200 140,400
Books, periodicals and newspapers 14,235 29,733
Other expenses 397,353 260,866
31,061,404 35,251,432
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audit fee 450,000 466,620
Out of pocket expenses 97,780 31,250
547,780 497,870
TAXATION
Current
for the year 33.1 5,594,889 3,512,930
Deferred 11,151,979 9,516,269

16,746,368 13,029,199

The provision for taxation for the current year has been made by applying alternate corporate tax to the Group on income not
covered under fixed / final tax regime; and applying respective rates applicable to income covered under fixed / final tax regime.

The declared results for Assessment years 1993-94, 1994-95 were accepted whereas return of income in respect of Tax years 2004,
2009, 2010 and 2017, are deemed to be assessed in terms of section 120(1)(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the "Ordinance").

The return of income furnished for assessment year 1995-96 to 2001-02 were filed in the status of a public company. However,
the status of a banking company was assigned to the Holding Company by the tax department and certain disallowances were
made in the profit and loss expenses. For the assessment year 1995-96 to 2000-01 issues were settled in favor of the Holding
Company by the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the ATIR).

Assessment in respect of tax year 2008 was amended vide order dated December 24, 2009 issued under section 122 of the Ordinance
by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the DCIR) creating tax demand of Rs. 37,791,566. The Holding Company filed an
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (the CIR(A)), which was decided in favor of tax department and the
Holding Company filed a second appeal before ATIR which was also decided against the Holding Company.

The Holding Company has filed a reference application before Islamabad High Court against the said order of ATIR. The date
of hearing has not yet been fixed.

No additional provision has been made against this demand as the management is confident that reference application will be
decided in favour of the Holding Company.

The return filed by the Holding Company was selected for audit under section 177 of the Ordinance. Information document request
was served under section 176 of the Ordinance which was duly responded. And on the basis of reply submitted and hearing with
the officer the return was amended under section 122(5) creating a tax demand amounting Rs. 14,460,027. Being aggrieved with
the assessment, an appeal against the said order was submitted before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I) which has
been heard for order.
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Assessment in respect of tax year 2012 was amended vide assessment order dated February 28, 2014 under section 221/113 of
the Ordinance. A rectification application was filed which was rejected. The order of DCIR was contested before CIR (A) who
remanded back the case to DCIR for further verification. No further notice in this regard has been received by the Holding
Company.

The returns filed by the Holding Company for the said years were selected for audit under section 177 of the Ordinance, online
showcase notices were issued but adjournment was asked. However, no further action has been taken by the authorities in this
regard.

33.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented for in these unconsolidated
financial statements as the income of the Holding Company is either subject to minimum tax, special rate of tax or final tax under
various provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

33.3 Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of 7.5% on every public company other than a scheduled
bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax a year but does not distribute 40% of accounting profit either through cash dividend
or issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of said tax year. The Company intends to distribute not less than 40%
of accounting profit either through cash dividend or issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of the reported year
and, accordingly, no provision for taxation has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
34.1 Basic earning per share
Profit after tax Rs. 16,990,338 58,483,947
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 51,433,558 51,433,558
Earnings per share Rs. 0.330 1.137

34.2 Diluted earning per share

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any instrument that would have an impact
on its earnings exercised.

35 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

An amount of Rs. 0.398 million (2017: Rs. 0.446 million) has been charged during the year in respect of contributory provident
fund maintained by the Holding Company.

35.1 Disclosure relating to provident fund

The Holding Company operates a recognized Provident Fund (the Fund) for its permanent employees.

2018 2017 2018 2017

----Percentage-----  ------- Rupees-------
(1) Size of the Fund 2,153,806 6,629,575
(ii) Cost of investments made 2,228,407 6,522,626
(iii) Percentage of investments made 103.46 98.39
(iv) Fair value of investments in government securities 2,228,407 3,064,000
Break up of the investments is as follows:
Bank balance 12.75 52.17 274,703 3,458,626
Government securities 90.71 46.22 1,953,704 3,064,000

35.2 Investments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017

and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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36 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES
2018 2017
Chief  Non-Executive Executive Executives Chief  Non-Executive Executive Executives
Executive directors director Executive directors director
Officer Officer
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Directors' meeting fees - 855,000 - - - 910,000 - -
Managerial remuneration 4,494,000 - - - 4,494,000 - - -
Bonus 715,500 - - - 374,500 - - -
Medical expenses 374,496 - - - 374,496 - - -
Provident fund - - - - - - - -
Other benefits 785,876 - - - 705,300 - - -
6,369,872 855,000 N N 5,948,296 910,000 - -
Number of persons 1 6 1 - 1 6 1 -
36.1 The executives of the Group are also entitled to free use of Group owned and maintained vehicles.
36.2 The amount charged in the consolidated financial statements as the fee of directors for attending a Board of Directors meeting

was Rs. 0.035 million per meeting.

36.3 The current and corresponding year figures include remunerations of Groups’s Executives whose basic salary exceeds twelve
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

37 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments. The Group has diversified its funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy
balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily cashable marketable securities. The maturity profile is monitored on regular basis
by Assets and Liabilities Committee to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. The following are the contractual maturities
of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

December 31, 2018
More than
Particulars U;‘:::)) ntglrsee tal::: f;gltznot:: Over one year Total
year
Rupees
Liabilities
Subordinated loan - - 180,000,000 180,000,000
Short term borrowings 2,759,096 - - 2,759,096
Unclaimed dividend - 2,094,583 - 2,094,583
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11,176,691 - 7,429,663 18,606,354
13,935,787 2,094,583 187,429,663 203,460,033
December 31, 2017
More than
Particulars U[l;t((:nttl;lrsee tal:,rg‘:,glt?,n(f:: Over one year Total
year
Rupees
Liabilities
Short term borrowings 37,398,225 - - 37,398,225
Unclaimed dividend - 2,094,583 - 2,094,583
Short term deposits - 7,700,000 - 7,700,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 170,877 - 25,230,646 25,401,523
37,569,102 9,794,583 25,230,646 72,594,331

Security Investment Bank Ltd.



27X;mual Report
2018

38 CREDIT RISK AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counter-parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter-parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of a Group's performance to developments
affecting a particular industry.

The Group follows two sets of guidelines. Firstly, it has its own operating policies duly approved by the Board of Directors.
Secondly, it adheres to the regulations issued by the SECP and SBP. The operating policies define the extent of fund and non-
fund based exposures with reference to a particular sector or group.

The Group seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of lending activities to avoid undue concentration of
risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business. It also obtains security when appropriate. Details
of industry / sector analysis of finance portfolio is given below:

2018 2017
38.1 Finance Rupees % Rupees %
Services 106,292,962 19.43 24,988,040 6.21
Cables and electric goods 440,645,943 80.57 377,187,255 93.79

546,938,905 100.00 402,175,295 100.00

38.2 Geographical Segment
These consolidated financial statements represent operations of the Group in Pakistan only.
39 MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of market risks (in addition to liquidity and credit risks). Market risk with respect to
the Group’s activities include interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

39.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility when changes in interest rate affect the value of financial instruments. The Group is

exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in a
given period. The Group manages this risk by matching the repricing of assets and liabilities.
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The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and financial liabilities are summarized as follows:

BANK LTD.

December 31, 2018

Exposed to Interest Rate/ Yield Risk

Not Exposed

Description Total Within More than Above to Interest
one year one year and  five years Rate/ Yield
up to five Risk
Financial assets
Investment in shares of PSX 21,752,072 - - - 21,752,072
Long term financing 12,701,494 8,823,033 3,878,461 - -
Short term financing 546,938,905 546,938,905 - - -
Investment in TFCs 5,836,219 5,836,219 - - -
Investment in T-bills 25,000,000 25,000,000 - - -
Short term investments in quoted shares 31,877,817 - - - 31,877,817
Loans and advances 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 3,022,977 - - - 3,022,977
Accrued interest 2,658,841 - - - 2,658,841
Balances with banks and cash in hand 19,663,073 17,431,673 - - 2,231,400
Total 671,951,398 604,029,830 3,878,461 - 64,043,107
Financial liabilities
Subordinated loan 180,000,000 - 180,000,000 - -
Short term borrowings 2,759,096 2,759,096 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued interest 7,429,663 - - - 7,429,663
Other liabilities 11,176,691 - - - 11,176,691
Total 203,460,033 2,759,096 180,000,000 - 20,700,937
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 601,270,734  (176,121,539) - 43,342,170
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 601,270,734 425,149,195 425,149,195
December 31, 2017
Exposed to Interest Rate/ Yield Risk Not Exposed
Within More than Above to Interest
Description Total one year one year and  five years Rate/ Yield
up to five Risk
Financial assets
Investment in shares of PSX 35,906,147 - - - 35,906,147
Long term financing 25,595,109 12,652,463 12,942,646
Short term financing 402,175,295 402,175,295 - - -
Investment in TFCs 5,836,219 5,836,219 - - -
Loans and advances 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 9,631,538 - - - 9,631,538
Accrued interest 41,139,793 - - - 41,139,793
Balance with bank and cash in hand 34,841,922 32,684,355 - - 2,157,567
Total 557,626,023 453,348,332 12,942,646 - 91,335,045
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings 37,398,225 37,398,225 - - -
Short term deposit 7,700,000 7,700,000 - - -
Unclaimed dividends 2,094,583 - - - 2,094,583
Accrued interest 170,877 - - - 170,877
Other liabilities 25,230,646 - - - 25,230,646
Total 72,594,331 45,098,225 - - 27,496,106
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 408,250,107 12,942,646 - 63,838,939
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 408,250,107 421,192,753 421,192,753

Mark-up rates are mentioned in the respective notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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39.2 Equity price risk

The Group's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values
of the investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual
and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior management on a regular basis.
The Group's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

39.3 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Group is not exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure as it is not
involved in foreign currency transactions.

39.4 Financial instruments by category 2018 R 2017
upees

Financial assets
Available for sale carried at fair value

Investments 37,714,036 31,431,328

Investment in shares of PSX 21,752,072 35,906,147
Held to maturity carried at amortized cost

Market treasury bills 25,000,000 -
Loans and receivables carried at amortized cost

Long term advances 2,500,000 2,500,000

Deposits and other receivables 3,022,977 9,631,538

Accrued interest 2,658,841 41,139,793

Bank balances 19,663,073 34,841,922

112,310,999 155,450,728

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Subordinated loan 180,000,000 -

Short term borrowings 2,759,096 37,398,225
Short term deposits - 7,700,000
Unclaimed dividend 2,094,583 2,094,583
Accrued interest 7,429,663 170,877
Other liabilities 11,176,691 25,230,646

203,460,033 72,594,331

40 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. Consequently differences may arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention or requirement
to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at the close of
trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly

occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
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Level 1: fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs)

As at December 31, 2018, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
'Rupees
Available for sale
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - - 5,836,219 5,836,219
Investment in shares of PSX 21,752,072 - - 21,752,072
Short term investments 31,877,817 - - 31,877,817

As at December 31, 2017, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
'Rupees
Available for sale
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - - 5,836,219 5,836,219
Investment in shares of PSX 35,906,147 - - 35,906,147

Short term investments - - - -

Valuation techniques

For level 3 investments - investment in respect of term finance certificates, the Holding Company has received Telecard Limited
sukuks which are non tradeable. Accordingly, these are stated at cost.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the changes
have occurred.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Transfers during the year

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating
income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Holding Company is exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has notified amendments in the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008 (vide
SRO No. 1002(I)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 and SRO No. 1160(1)/2015 dated November 25, 2015). The Board of Directors
in its meeting held on September 07, 2016 has resolved to continue the Holding Company's IFS License as Non Deposit taking
Lending NBFC and, accordingly, the Holding Company is in compliance with Minimum Capital Requirement as stipulated in
the NBFC Regulations, 2008.
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BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions and includes associated companies with or without common directors,
directors and major shareholders and their close family members, key management personnel and retirement benefit funds. The
Group has a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length prices using comparable uncontrolled
price method and are in the normal course of business at contracted rates and terms determined in accordance with market rates.
Transactions with related parties during the year, other than Director's remuneration given under note 36 to the unconsolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

Transactions During the year

Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Demand Financing made
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 44,847,260 95,300,000
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director - 30,000,000
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 40,505,000 68,000,000
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 100,000,000 83,000,000
185,352,260 276,300,000
Return on financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 33,994,932 26,785,107
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 4,150,956 3,393,901
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 18,628,831 15,950,407
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 8,083,742 1,714,675
64,858,461 47,844,090
Repayment of demand finance by companies
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 8,500,000 64,584,717
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director - 8,400,000
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director - 6,236,566
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 24,556,120 6,072,581
33,056,120 85,293,864
Markup included in principal
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 29,521,115 -
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 6,642,230 -
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 13,403,300 -
Ary Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 5,861,042 -
55,427,687 -
Adjustment / Repayment of demand finance after SECP inspection
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 37,839,160 -
Madina Electronics Associated Undertaking Common Director 4,686,047 -
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 20,435,010 -
62,960,217 -
Subordinated loan raised
Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 30,000,000 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
180,000,000 -
Office building purchased
Ary Communication (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 32,000,000 -
Office rent paid
Ary Communication (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director 1,096,200 1,096,200
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Nature of Transaction

Murabaha finance provided
Zafar M Sheikh

Long term financing recovery
Murabaha financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
New Delite Company Limited
Zafar M Sheikh

Lease financing
New Delite Company Limited

Loans and advances
Car loan
Zafar M Sheikh

Advance against expenses
Sheikh Abdullah

Recovery against car loan
Zafar M Sheikh

Recovery against advance for expenses

Repayment of short term deposit
New Delite Company Limited

Repayment of other liabilities

Other
Contribution to staff provident fund

Guarantee commission income
Madina Electronics
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
ARY Films & TV Production

Balances as at the year end

Long term investments
Long term financing
Murabaha financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
New Delite Company Limited
Zafar M Sheikh

Lease financing
New Delite Company Limited

Short term financing
H.M Esmail & Co. Limited
Madina Electronics
New Delite Company Limited
Ary Services (Private) Limited

Loans and advances

Car loan
Zafar M Sheikh
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Nature of Relation

Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking

Employee Fund

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Chief Executive

Associated Undertaking

Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking
Associated Undertaking

Chief Executive

Basis of Relation

Directorship

Common Director
Common Director
Directorship

Common Director

Directorship

Directorship

Directorship

Common Director

Common Director
Common Director
Common Director

Common Director
Common Director
Directorship

Common Director

Common Director
Common Director
Common Director
Common Director

Directorship

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
- 2,742,500
2,431,104 2,217,804
1,758,911 2,521,511
2,291,544 450,956
6,481,559 5,190,271
5,565,922 4,760,078
5,307,000 -
150,000 -
427,905 -
461,901 -
7,700,000 -
398,049 445,572
442,393 539,631
27,398 91,000
40,952 55,505
510,743 686,136
472,590 2,903,694
1,049,220 2,808,131
- 2,291,544
5,847,955 11,413,877
264,852,344 236,823,129
32,791,140 30,834,957
143,002,459 109,529,169
106,292,962 24,988,040
546,938,905 402,175,295
4,845,099 -
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Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Advance against expenses
Sheikh Abdullah Director Directorship 150,000 -
Subordinate loan
Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 30,000,000 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 25,000,000 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 25,000,000 -
180,000,000 -

Short term deposits
New Delite Company Limited Associated Undertaking Common Director - 7,700,000

Accrued markup on subordinate loan

Haji Jan Mohammad Director Directorship 1,238,275 -
Muhammad Shoaib Director Directorship 1,031,898 -
Muhammad Mehboob Director Directorship 1,031,898 -
Shahnaz Jawed Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Fouzia Rauf Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Muhammad Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -
Zarina Igbal Sponsor Sponsorship 1,031,898 -

7,429,663 -

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.

2018 2017

STAFF STRENGTH

Number of employees at end of the year 15 16

Average number of employees during the year 16 16
GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

SHAKEEL AHMED ZAFAR M. SHEIKH HAJI JAN MOHAMMAD
CFO CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Security Investment Bank Ltd. |HEER
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BANK LTD.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Number of shareholders Shareholding Total number of shares Percentage %
held

812 1 100 30,273 0.059

480 101 500 116,903 0.227

225 501 1000 181,265 0.352

457 1001 5000 776,001 1.509

53 5001 10000 377412 0.734

18 10001 15000 222,299 0.432

1 15001 20000 18,367 0.036

10 20001 25000 233,790 0.455

4 25001 30000 116,100 0.226

2 30001 35000 63,122 0.123

2 40001 45000 85,602 0.166

1 45001 50000 45,172 0.088

5 50001 55000 264,754 0.515

2 65001 70000 133,998 0.261

1 120001 125000 124,500 0.242

3 160001 165000 487,440 0.948

1 170001 175000 171,500 0.333

1 205001 210000 208,236 0.405

2 230001 235000 466,758 0.907

1 300001 305000 301,680 0.587

1 375001 380000 375,463 0.730

1 420001 425000 422,500 0.821

1 430001 435000 431,500 0.839

1 490001 495000 495,000 0.962

1 585001 590000 585,572 1.139

1 705001 710000 706,977 1.375

1 915001 920000 917,841 1.785

1 925001 930000 926,234 1.801

1 1085001 1090000 1,089,900 2.119

1 1110001 1115000 1,114,392 2.167

1 1150001 1155000 1,150,500 2.237

1 1160001 1165000 1,160,500 2256

1 1175001 1180000 1,178,581 2.291

1 1470001 1475000 1,475,000 2.868

1 1515001 1520000 1,517,198 2.950

1 1570001 1575000 1,573,550 3.059

1 1760001 1765000 1,761,447 3.425

1 1825001 1830000 1,825,050 3.548

2 2225001 2230000 4,453,120 8.658

1 2230001 2235000 2,232,482 4341

1 2795001 2800000 2,796,114 5.436

1 2920001 2925000 2,923,849 5.685

1 3650001 3655000 3,650,100 7.097

1 4945001 4950000 4,945,316 9.615

1 7300001 7305000 7,300,200 14.193

2,107 51,433,558 100

Categories of shareholders Number of shareholder Shares held Shares held %
INDIVIDUALS 2063 46,518,320 90
INVESTMENT COMPANIES 4 2,029 0
INSURANCE COMPANIES 2 375,693 1
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 27 2,533,807 5
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 5 5,079 0
EMPLOYEEE PROVIDENT FUND 1 235,000 0
MODARABA COMPANIES 1 889 0
CHARITABLE TRUST 1 30,000 0
MUTUAL FUND 1 1,517,198 3
OTHERS 1 208,236 0
EMPLOYEES BENEVOLENT FUND 1 7,307 0

2,107 51,433,558 100

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER

2018

REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1) Individual
Individual

2) Investment companies except ICP
Investment companies except ICP

3) Public / Private Sector Companies and Corporations
Public / Private Sector Companies and Corporations

4) Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minor children
Haji Jan Muhammad
Karim Muhammad Munir
Mohammad Shoaib
Muhammad Mehboob
Shaikh Abdullah
Sheikh Asim Rafiq (NIT) National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Department
ZAFAR MUHAMMAD SHAIKH

5) Investment Corporation of Pakistan
Investment Corporation of Pakistan

6) Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Fouzia Bano
Maryiam Bai
Muhammad Hanif
Muhammad Igbal
Shahnaz Javed
Yasmin Bano
Zarina Igbal

7) Banks, DFIs, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Mutual Funds except National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee
Department

Banks, DFIs, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Mutual Funds except National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Department
8) Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting interest
Amina Bano

HAR

Grand Total

14,704,348
14,704,348

2,029
2,029

2,533,807
2,533,807

1,524,790
1,221
500

1,111
2,760
1,000
1,517,198
1,000

1,705
1,705

17,987,314
1,825,050
1,178,581
2,226,560
4,084,349
3,650,100
2,226,560
2,796,114

860,499
860,499
13,819,066
7,300,200

6,518,866

51,433,558

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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Dear Shareholder,

BANK LTD.

Dividend Mandate

Dividend Mandate: (Optional)

Security Investment Bank Limited wishes to inform its Shareholders that under the Law (Section 250 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984) they are entitled (if they so opt) to receive their cash dividend directly in their designated bank accounts
instead of receiving it through dividend warrants. This will not only be convenient but will also save considerable time
as funds will be credited directly into the bank account.

Shareholders either desiring to execise this option or wanting to update the Bank Mandate information already provided
should subit the following information to Security Investment Bank Limited Share Registrar at the address noted herein:

S.No Shareholder/Member Details

Shareholder Name

Father’s/ Husband’s Name

Folio Number

Name of Bank and Branch

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Cell Number

Telephone Number (if any)

CNIC Number (attach copy)

NTN (in case of corporate entity, attach copy)
Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder)

Z S| x| w]|an|n| v~

Signature of Member/Shareholder

Please note that this dividend mandate is OPTIONAL and NOT COMPULSORY, in case you do not wish your dividend
to be directly credited into your bank account then the same shall be paid to you through the dividend warrants.

CNIC Submission (Mandatory):

Pursuant to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, CNIC number is mandatorily required
to be mentioned on dividend warrants, you are therefore requested to submit a copy of your valid CNIC. In case of non-
receipt of the copy of valid CNIC, Security Investment Bank Limited (the Company) would be unable to comply with
SRO 831(1)/2012 dated 5 July 2012 of SECP and therefore may be constrained under Section 251(2) (a) of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 to withhold dispatch of dividend warrants of such shareholders in future.

Security Investment Bank Limited Share Registrar

C & K Management Associates (Pvt) Limited
404, Trade Tower, Near Hotel Metropolitan, Karachi.

*Note: The Shareholders who hold shares in Central Depository Company are requested to submit the duly filled in
Dividend Mandate Form to their Participants/Investor Account Services.

Yours faithfully,

Shakeel Ahmed

Company Secretary

Security Investment Bank Limited

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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FORM OF PROXY

TWENTY EIGHT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

a member / members of SECURITY INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED and holding ..........cccccceeeeieeeennnee
ordinary shares, as per Register Folio/CDC A/C OF SUD @CCOUNT NO. ...veuviueueueueiiieieieieieieieieieieieieieeieeeieeeienenens

O NETEDY APPOINE ettt ettt se e ese st e s e s s esesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesans

to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty Eight Annual General Meeting of the Company to be

held on 29th April 2019 and at any adjournment thereof.

As Witness my/our hand this ...........cccceeeriernnnenn. day of oo 2019.
REVENUE
Folio No. STAMP
RS. 5/-
Witness:
1. Name SIGNATURE OF MEMBER(S)
CNIC No.
2. Name
CNIC No.
IMPORTANT:
1 A member entitled to attend Twenty Eight Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint

a proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
2 The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly

authorized in writing. If the member is a corporation its common seal (if any) should be
affixed on the instrument.

3 The proxies shall be deposited at the Share registrar's office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the time of the meeting.

4 For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met.

() Copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with
the proxy form.

(i) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

(i) in case of a corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature.

Security Investment Bank Ltd.
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BANK LTD.
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Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:
€z Licensed Entities Verification
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. Knowledge center
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Risk profiler*
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Financial calculator
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Jamapunji application for
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2] Online Quizzes
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